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Independent Auditors® Report

To the Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

At the request of Ajanta Pharma Limited (APL), the Holding Company of Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
("APUY or the Company'), registered as a limited liability Company in New lersey, United States of
America, we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Company , which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as "the Ind AS financial statements”), prepared and presented solely to facilitate the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company- Ajanta Pharma Limited
(*APL’), in terms of section 129(3) of the Indian Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") and in accordance
with the requirements of the Schedule 111 to the Act

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in confoermity with the basis of preparation as sel
out in note 2 of the financial stitements and Group Accounting Policies of Ajanta Pharma Limited, of
the state of affairs of the APUI as on 31 March 2020 and its profit (including other comprehensive
income), the changes in equity and cash flow for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA) 1ssued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') and in particular SA 800 “Special Considerations — Audit of
Financial Statements prepared in accordance with Special Purpose Frameworks. Our responsibilities
under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Holding Company, APUI's management and their Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements that gives & true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting policies followed by the Holding Company- Ajanta Pharma Limited, in preparing its
financial statements ("Group Accounting Policies™)
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ajanta Pharma Limited

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements (Continued)

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material missimiement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, Holding Company, APUI's management and the Board of
Directors of Holding Company and APUI are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosmg. as applicable, maners related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no reabistic altemative but to do so,

The respective Board of Directors 1s also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporing process.,

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 1s not a
guarantee that an audit conducted 1a accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements ¢an arise from fraud or error and are considered
material 1f, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the sudit, We also:

=  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nisk of
nol detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contrel.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimaies and related disclosures made by management,
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Independent Auditors® Report (Continued)
Ajanta Pharma Limited
Auditors” Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opmon. Our conclusions are based on the audn
evidence obtained up to the date of our suditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to ceise to continue as g going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves presentation in accordance with the basis of preparation as set out in
Note 2 to the financial statements.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify duning our audit.

Other matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which
describes the basis of preparation. These finuncial statements do not constitute a set of statutory
financial statements in accordance with the local laws in which the Company is incorporated and
are prepared for the sole purpose of consolidation of the financial statements of APUI with the
Holding Company — Ajanta Pharma Limited.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accounrants
Firm's Registration Ne: 101248 W/W-100022

oK

Sreeja Marar

Parmer

Mumbai Membership No: 111410
20 May 2020 UDIN: 2001 141 0AAAAAT2585



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Balance Sheet
ix i 3] March 2026

[Currency: LISD)

Assety

Mon-corrent sssels
Property, plant end equipment
(tber intangible akscts
Intangibic asmcts under development
Righi-of-wse assets
Defermed lax assets {net)
Tolal non-current aseis
Curreat asscis
Invenlones
Financial assels
Trude receivables
Cash and caah equivalents
ther currenl gincts
Tolsl current avicis

Tidal assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
FEquity share caprial
Other cquity
Tofal equity

Lishifithes
Non current labilities

Lease liahalithes

Current liabllities
Financial Tinbilitics

Borrowhags
Trade payahles
Lease habildics
(they financial habihines
{her cusrendt liabilities
Current tax Nabilitiey {not)
Total corrent llabilithes

Total equity and tishilities

Sigmficant accounbmg policies
The note refermed to above form an integral pan of financial datement

As pet our repont of even date atached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accmwnianty
Fum Registration Moc 101 248W W T2 2

Merribership Mo, 111410

Mumbai, 20 May, 2020

31 March 1020 3 March 2019
Note UsD LsD

7 06210 [N

1 150,670 -
7 1028 47718

1 559,100 -

# 19,100 -
1465996 Ho4,.478
? 16,506,547 13632350
n 55,143,579 IR 1,080
] SHET RN 2227010
I2 4K4,904 46),248
TIATISM 44,36, B8R
T8A19.930 45,056,113
13 1,000,000 1,00, 000
14 4521926 143K 75%
S5211.926 3,458,758

5 411,082
It L6kl 520 4821 887
7 &6, TTH.066 12,552 042
% 167250
1% 5493453 59,934
20 L0230 2333283
2l 159,731 650,227
TAARG,022 A41.617.355
T939,930 454150, 113
o6
Tindl

For and on behall of Board of Direcion of
Ajnnts Pharma USA Inc.

——4—I.+|f 1L¢-"U“Hr

L3

Yogesh M, Agrawal
Dhreetos
DIN ; (073673

Mumbai, 20 May, 2020



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Statement of Profit and Loss Account
Jor the year ended 11 March 2020

{Curreney; LISD)

Tncome
Revenue from oporations
Total income
Expenies
Purchase af stuck-in-trade
Changes 1 inventoncs of finished goods work -in-progress sigek-in-rade
Emplovee benelin expense
Finance cosia
Depreciation and smoftisation v pensc
Cther expemics
Tolal expenses
Profil before fax
Tan expense
For current year
For gashier yours
Iheffered tax

Prafit for the vesr

Hher comprehensive Income | (loas)

Tterms that will be reclansified subsequently 1o profil ar boss

Income tax relating bo pems that will be reclussified 1o profi or ks

Net other comprehensive lncome | (loss) to be reclassified sabsequently to profit or
lasa

Oiher comprehensdve Income nol 1o be reclasified 1o prafit ar loss In sabseqoent

years
Income tax relating 1o tems that will nat be reclasificd 1o profit or loss

Nelt other comprehensive income nol to be reclaisified to profil or loss In subsequent
Viears

Chher comprebensive income | (low) for the year, ol of Ly

Total comprebensive Income lor the year

Earnlng Per Equity Share (Baskc & Diluted) (Face Valuve USD 100/-)

Sigmificam accounting policics
The nose referred o abowe form an iniegral past of financial statement

As per our report of evén date attached
For S R & Co, LLF

Chartered Accoustants
Firm Registration Mo: 100 288WAW- 100022

Sreejs Marar
Parteer
Memberuhip No- 111410

Musmbai, 20 May, 2020

Nole

a2

FiL]
4
a3

2K

£
38

o b
Tdl

3 March 2010 31 March 2019
LSD LIS
TLI137 310 41, TH.6T4
T30 41,769,674
61.044.226 35209774
12,754,15%) (1,T35,757)
3,786,042 3234 504
316,910 T4, 695
221,114 51.901
5,621,669 3,66, K31
69,148,182 40,199,114
1889128 1,570,440
514,081 319,513
1650,127) 141,387
(39,100} ~
1,064,404 1 40
1.064.404 1,009,140
206.44 105893
For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Ajants Pharmas USA Inc.

__.._=L§‘.41 VAAAL "xr

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Dhirector
DN DOOTIATI

Mumbag, 20 May, 2020



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Jor the year ended 31 March 2020
(Camency: USDY

A. Equity Share Caplial (Refer note 13)

| Autharived :
lunioed :
Sabscribed & Paid up:

Balunee we 0 Chasges In equalty Ralance s w1
I April 1019 share capital 3 March 2070

10, ) 10060, 00
b A, ) 1, 08000, 0080
§, 0001, (31 - 1,000, DN

B. (ber equity (Refer note 14)

Farticulary Genernl Heserve  Retsined Earmings Equity Toasl Equity
contribution from
Holiting Company

Ad ml | April 2018 {1,567 902) 290730 [RALET ]
Prof Foe thee pesusd . 1,09, Jkh 1,099,340
{Onher comprebemirve meome 1 -
Toeal comprehensive income - 1,094 040 1,099, 40
Trmnafer o General rowerve ’ =
Deferred Tas mopact on opening curry forwsnd ks
Dvidend Paid i : -
ALY March 2009 1,567,902} 4, 00 bl 148,758
Trznwition ampact of Tnd AS |16 (Refer Moswe 33} . 130,933} {1n213)
Revtased balance o | Apnld 2019 (1,567,902 A;s 2407 A15
Profil for the penod 1064 A0 AW A0
[inhet comprebemie oot . T g
Tetal commpreheniive exome - 2064 404 i 404
Diividend Paid - - - =
Shock options of holding compasy granied 49897 T
ALY March 2000 (1567902 #i,040, 111 45,697 4521904
Nature of Reserves

a) General Reserve

The General reservie i used from time 1o time 10 ransier profits from retained carmings for appropranon purposcs,

b} Retained Earnings

Retained Eamings are the profits that the Company has camed 6l date less any ransfer w general reserve, dividends or other dismnbunons pad 10

sharcholders.

¢} Equity Contribition from Holding Company

The fair vahoe of options granted by Pasent company o employees of the company are recognised as Equaty Cottiibution from Holding Comipany

The sccompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Fu BSR & Co LLP

Chartered Aocoundants

Frem Regrstration No: 101 248W/ W 100023
|

Srecla M
Partmee
Membership Mot 111410

Mumbaj, 20 May, 2020

For and on hehall of Board of Dircciors of
Ajanias Pharma USA Toc.

;44 ANAR M=

Yeogesh M. Agrawal

[hrecior

DN : 00071671

Mustnbai, 20 May, 2020



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Cashflow Statement
Jor the year ended 1 Marck 2020

(Cramency. LISD)

A

Niode

Canh Mow frem operating sctivithe

Profit before tax

Adjustment ot
Deprecution and smonmsaton exponse
Finance couts
Provision fur expared goods
Impairment dous on financial st
Emplnyee sock opton evpensc

Ohperating cash flow befare morking caphial chunges

Chanpes in workmg capital
[Incresse) w trade reconvable
(lncreas) oy odber clstru mancts
| Inetene) m imventorses
Incresse in other current adlities
Incrense m trade payubics

Canh pemeratad from operations
Nel mcome tan (pasd) | written back

et carh flow genersted from opersting sctivities

Cunh Now from investing sctivithes

Cagital pxpenditure on property, plant and equipment nchudmg capisl sdvances
Nt canl waed In Investing sciivitiey

Cunly flow from Minancieg sctivithes
Imiense i shn-terri Borroings-mel
Repayment ol kease Hability {inchading maeren theroon |
Interest pasd

Net canh wied in fnancing sethvithes

Net incrrase in coah and covh equitalonts

Cank and cash equiviienty s ot the hepimning of the yoar
Canh snd coh equivalents ax a1 the end of the yewr
Figures m brackets indicates outflow

31 March 20le 1i March MiiH
(LN 1,570 540
maa 5150]
26,830 74,494
4510517 iNed. 220}
146,555 2
49 457 .
TA81B41 5104
{27,245,833) {18438, 157)
124.650) 10,382
(1.754,199) (1,775
L0001 L]
23924918 6,120 07
AT a1
1I6E873) {217,000
1501, 540 3801210
(226.855) 1127.559)
(226,855) {137,559}
LRI RS 4521 AT
{100, 208)
{188,283) (14695)
He73 4,747,192
Lu30R5E Tika22
121700 1,508,558
£ 4T 56K FET I

| The above Cash Flow Stusernem has been prepared ander Indoect Method” a6 wet oot sn Accountmg Stndand 7 (Ind AS - T) Susement of Cash Flow™
under Section 133 of the Companies At 2013,

L Cash comprises caah ou hand, curmen accounty and deposity with banks: Cush equavalents are shor-term balsoces (wilh an ongimal maturity of three
manths or kews from the date of sequisition |

3. Chanigts in libilibes arising from (iancing sctivites
Shert-term borraw ings

Opering balunce
Amownt borrowed | irepasd) during the year
Chming habince

As pet o repert of cvien date attached

3 March 2010 31 March 29
4820587 :

Bdl 604 831,007

5661521 RAT1AST

For BS R & Ca. LLP
1 Mrtervid Acoimamiante
Firm Regivtration Moo 101 208W /W 1000622

&

Memberahup No: 111410

Whomibud, 210 Moy, 2030

Far and on behall of Board of Directars of
Ajants Fharn USA lnc.

-

Vogeh M. Agrawal
hrveior
DIN | BHTIA73

Muimbal, 20 May, 7030



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
MNuotes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma USA Inc. is a limued lizhility company incorporated and domiciled m United States
of America and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India. The address of s
registered office is located at 440, US Highway, 22, East Bridgewater, New Jersey 08B07, LSA.

Company is primarily invelved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activitics.
Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared m accordance with the Company accounting policies as
adopted by its Holding Company. Ajanta Pharma Limited (Ajanta) which is as per the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015
notified under Section 133 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™).

These financial statements are “special purpose financial statements™ and do not constitute a set of
statutory financial statements in accordance with the local laws in which the Company is
incorporated and are prepared for the sole purpose of the Consolidation of Ind AS financial
statements of the Company with Ajanta.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,
which have been measured at fair value or revalued amoumt wherever applicable.

The Financial Statement for the Company were authonsed for 1ssue by the Company's Board of
Directors on 20 May, 2020,

Use of estimates and judgements;

The preparaton of financial ststements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and (ke reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and the disclosure of contingent liadilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and under lying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis, Any revision 10 becounting éstimates 1s recognised prospectively in current and
future penods.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Property, Plant and equipment

Determination of the estmated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which
components of the cost may be capitalised. Useful lives of tanpible assets are based on the life
prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that
prescribed in Schedule 11, they are based on tachnical advice, taking into account the nature of the
assel, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of
replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support.

Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. Management
believes that assigned useful hives are reasonable.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverpble amounts, Individual trade receivables are



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

written off when management deems them not collectible. Impairment 15 made on the expected
credit loss model.

The impairment provisions for {inancial assets are based on assumption about risk of default and
cxpected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumption and selecting the inputs to the
impairment caleulation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting penod.

Allowances for inventories

Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic basis. The review invalves comparison
of the camrying value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value. The
purpose 1s to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial statement for
any obsolete and slow-moving items. Management is satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving invenlones has been made m the financial statements

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred tax assel is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it 15
probable that taxable profit will bz available against which the deductible temporary difference can
be uulised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be available while recognising
deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax
assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheel date the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets. The {actors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead
to significant adjustment 1o the amounts reporied i the inancial statements.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability
of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet
date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure ncluded
in other provisions,

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in
respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible 1o predict the
outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the camying value of an asset or cash generating unit (*CGU") exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount 15 the hagher of its fair value less costs o sell and its
value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. In caleulating
the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters,
including manngement’s expectations of growth in EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the
selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved

Amounts deducted from revenue for the projected chargeback, sales returns, rebates and
Medicaid

The significant adjustments to the revenue are hroadly explained below:

(a) A chargeback is a claim made by the wholesaler for the difference between the prices at which
the product is initally invoiced to the wholesaler and the net price at which it is agreed to be w_



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020
procured from the company. Provision for chargeback is calculared on the basis of historical
experience und specific lerms in the agreements

{b) Sales retumn 15 varable consideration that 15 recognised and recorded based on historical
experience, market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The
methodology and assumptions wsed to estimaie retums are monitored and adjusted regularly in ling
with trade practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

(¢} Provision for rebate i calculated on the basis of historical experience and specific terms in the
agreements. Charge back, rebates, retums and medicaid payments are variable consideration that is
recognised and recorded based on histoncal expenence, market conditions and specific contractual
terms. The methodelogy and assumptions used 1o estimate rebates and returns are monitored and
adjusted regularly in line with contractual and legal obligations, trade practices historical trends, past
experience and projecied market conditions,

(d) Followng a decrease in the price of a product, the Company generally grants customers a "shelf
stock adjustment” for a customer's existing inventory for the involved product. Provisions for shelf
stock adjustments are determined at the time of the price decline or at the point of sale, if the impact
of a price decline on the products sold cen be reasonably estimated based on the customer's
inventory levels of the relevant product.

4. Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (USD) which is also the functional
currency. All the amounts have been rounded off to the nearest USD, unless otherwise indicated,

5. Current / non-current classification

An entity shall classify an asset as current when-

(a) it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume i, 1n its normal operating cycle;
(b} it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of rading;

(¢} it expects 1o realise the asset within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

(d) the asset is cash or & cash equivalent unless the asset is resimnicted (rom being exchanged or used
to settle a liability for at least twelve months afler the reporting period.

An entity shall classify all other assets as non-current.

An entity shall classify a hability as current when-

(a) it expects to settle the lability m its normal operating cycle;

(b} it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

{c) the liability 15 due to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period; or

(d) it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

An entity shall classify all other liabilities as non-current,

Operating Cycle



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

6.1

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilines as current and
non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated al historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as o separate asset as appropriale, only when il is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 1o the company and the
cost of the item can be measured rehiably,

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Building 27.5 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings | 3-8 years
Computer Software's 3 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of
reporting period. Where the carmying amount of an asset s preater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are deternined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement of profit or loss,

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable (o0 the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less sccumulated amortisation and impairment losses, il any,
Intemally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the
related expendinure 1s reflected in Statement of profit and loss in the penod in which the expenditure
15 incurred.

Software is amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line basis from the date they are
available for intended use, subject 1o impairment test.

The amortisation peniod and the amortisation method for an intangible assets with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of sach reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the nsset are considered 1o
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated a8 changes i accounting
estimates,

i



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

6.2

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
staternent of profit and loss when the assets 1s derecognised.

Impairment on non financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date 1o determine whether there s any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

For ympairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (1. corporate assets)
are grouped together into cash-gencrating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of
assels that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of 8 CGU 1s the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs 1o sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGLL

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognized in respect of 2 CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss i respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recogmized in prior
peniods, the Company reviews at cach reporting date whether there 1s any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoversble amount. Such a reversal is made only 1o the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of deprecaation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another enity.

Financial Assets

Classification

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
ather comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset,

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
¢ Fmancial assets at fair value (FVTPL/ FYTOCI)
¢ Financial assets at amortised cost
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When assets are measured at for value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)}, or recognised in other comprehensive
ncome (Le. fair valoe through other compreliensive income (FNTOCH),

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset 1s held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash fMlows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured ot amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, if any. The losseés arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCT)
Financial assets under this catcgery are measured mitally as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is 10 hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recogmzed
in the other comprehensive income,

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL™):

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss,

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the nghts to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expecied credin loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt nstruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

Company classifies all financial habilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilitics are recognised innzally at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transection costs,

Financial lishilities include trade and other pavables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. @

Subsequent Measurement
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6.4

Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by 1aking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an infegral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 15 included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing hability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of mventories is
based on the moving weighted average basis, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
mventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present locanon and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
selling expenses.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value 1s made on an item-by-item basis. The Company
considers various factors like shelf life, ageing of inventories, product discontinuation, price changes
and other factors which mmpact the company’s business in determining the allowance for obsolete,
non-saleable and slow, non-moving inventories. The company considers the above factor and adjusts
the invemtory provision to reflect its actual performance on actual basis. Goods in transit are valued
at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet.

Cash and eash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash al bank including fixed
deposithighly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or Jess that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associaled with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash Dlow from operating, investing and financing actwities of the Company are
segregated. Bank overdrafis that are repavable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of
statement of cash flow.

N
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6.6

6.7

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the Company's functional currency at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchunge rate a1 the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and habilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are nol translated. Foreign currency
exchange differences are generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Exchange differences anising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary ilems
at rates different from those at which they were translated on mitial recognition during the peniod or
in previous Financial Statements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when o gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115 (applicable from 1 April 2018)

Under Ind AS 115, the company recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obhigation was
satisfied, ie. when ‘control’ of the gocds underlying the particular performance obligation were
transferred to the customer,

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Siep Methodology which s as
follows:

Step 12 ldentify the contraci(s) with a customer

Step 2: ldentify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price 1o the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography .

Sale of Goods
The Company applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is measured based on the ransaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is
specified in a contract with customer, Revenue are net of estimated returns and taxes collected from
customers.

Revenue from sale of goods 1s recognized at pont in time when control is transferred 10 the
customer and 1t is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon
the shipment of the goods 1o the customer or when goods 1s made available to the customer.

The transaction price 18 documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable, Vanable consideration is only recognised when it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur,

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Insurance and other claims are recogmsed as
a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes
are accounted to the extent considered receivable.

Dividend income is recognised when the Entity’s nght to receive the payment 15 established, which
is generally when sharcholders approve the dividend.
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6.9

6.10

Emplovee Benefits

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting penod. Shori-term benefits given

by the Company to its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, Medicare
contributions, and other non-monetary benefits. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid; if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-Employment Benefits — The Company provides a 401(k) retirement program for full-time
employees who are 21 years of age or older. Eligible employees are entitled to participate in the
company offered plan with an option to contribute up the maximum 3% of annual base salary. For
employees with an annual base salary above the annual compensation limits, as determined by the
Federal Internal Revenue Service (Federal), the annual APUI contribution will be capped at 3% of
the Federal allowed annual compensation limits. All contributions are 100% vested immediately 1o

the employee.

Share-based compensation

Employees Stock Options Plans (“ESOPs”): The grant date farr value of options granted to
employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in eguity, over the
period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The expense is recorded
for cach separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in substance, multple awards.
The company recognizes compensalion expense relating 1o share-based paymenis in net profit using
fair-value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment. The ESOPs (shares of holding

company) are granted to the employees of the company.

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision i5 recognised if, as o result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outllow of economic
benefits wall be required 1o settle the obligation, Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the
present obligation at the balance sheet daie) at a pre<tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the nsks speaific o the hability. The unwinding of the discount 15
recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs compnise of interest and other costs thal an enfity incurs in connéction with the
borrowing of funds. Bomowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of
production of an asset that takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they oceur. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as financial expenses
over the term of borrowing.

Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement i3, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

v
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Transition

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all
lease contracts existing on JApril 2019 psing the modified retrospective method and has 1zken the
cumulative adjustment 1o retaned eamings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
Group recorded the lease liability at the presemt value of the lease payments discounted at the
generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interest rate at the date of nitial application, Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March,
2019 have not been retrospectively adiusted and therefore will continue 1o be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our financial statements for year ended 31 March 2019.

On iransition, the adoption of the new standard resulted n recogmiion of "Right of Use' asset and a
lease liability. The cumulative effect of applying the standard, was debited to retained camings. The
effect of this adoption 1s msignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and eamings per
share, Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash nflows from operating activities and an increase
in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients ¢lected on mitial application:

I. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

2. Applied the exemption not to recogmze right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than
12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which trunsactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only 10 contracts that were previously dentified as leases under
Ind AS 17.

The difference between the lease obligation recorded ns of 31 March 2019 under Ind AS 17
disclosed in financial statements and the value of the lease liability as of | April 2019 is primarily on
account of inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised, in
measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the lease liabilities to
the present value under Ind AS 116,

The interest rate applied to lease hiabilitics as at April 1, 2019 is 5.50%.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per equity share is compuied by dividing the net profit attributable 1o the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit atributable 1o the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving husic eamnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares thal
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential ¢quity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented.
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6.13

6.14

Income Taxes

Income tax expense compnises current and deferred income tax,

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except 1o the extent
that it relates 1o items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
camprehensive income, Current income tax for current and prior perfods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted by the balance sheet date, Deferred income tax assets and labilities are
recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements

Deferred income tax is provided i full, using the liability method, on temporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and thewr carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it 15 not accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting penod and
are expected to apply in the period when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred imcome tax lisbility is senled. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
prohable that future taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Dividends to Sharcholders

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the sharcholders. Any intennm dividend paid 1s recogmised on
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recogmised directly in equity.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

General

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognized when: (a) the Company has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation; and (¢) a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is matenial, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and those risks specific lo
the liability. When discounting is used, the merease in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as Finance Cost. When some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is
expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only
when, it 15 virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation.
The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognized for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent lability is disclosed in the case of:

* A present obligation anising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation,

» A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable esumates 15 possible;

® A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote,

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Siatements. Contingent assels
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements
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Commitments nclude the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value measurcment

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, denvatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

= Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank

*  Mutual Funds are measured at fair values os per Net Asset Value (NAV),

» Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fuir values as per Actuanial Valuation Report.

Fair value 15 the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a hobility 1s measured using the assumptions thal market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best mterest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset 1akes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and mimmismg the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and habilities for which fair value 13 measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 — Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

¢ Level 3 — Valustion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categonisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
Liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

v
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6.16  Recent accounting pronouncements

Minisiry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from | April 2020.

»w
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11,567,907}

01,567,981

ot )
"N

333
3T

B,040,1 31

4521926

ERIR L H

di1.982

5681 521

561511

M March 2019

LT 802}

(3T I07)

LTI
T30
| O 3400
o T, ol

2ANE TSN

480157

452087

161 The Company obtamed a revolving boan facilty om 12 Decesnber 2018 The Company has o credit Lmmst wp fo § 6,000,000 As 2 3] Maech 2020, the
Company had sn putsanding balance of § 5,663,521 on the revobang loan facility. The mierot payabile on the impaid outeandmg principal halance n
ejual 1o the Lardon Interbank Offered Rate of Inierest phes 3 30% (LIBOR + 3 50%). Interest b paid om monthly basia. The s faciliy o fully

repayahie on e

Al the targible and intangpible st of the Company wre collsteralised agama the nevahving ling of crodd Tacility svailed. The revolving bing of crodie has
been Nully guarapieed by the Parcns Compary. The Commgpiny pays & pasrarive commsion 1o the Parent Crarpany &l 1,90 % of the tidlal revebvng Boe of

wredat Tamil, {refer note 16)

17 Trade payables

Trade paysbles 1 relased party fvefir note 36)

18 Lease labilitles {current)

Leuse habilities (refier pobe 313)

19 Other Minancial labilities (curreat)

Sales return fof expared goods (Refer nose 343

56,778 564

ST

147,250

167

JLRS2A42

JLHENI

—_—
e ————

WAL

ENM
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0 (uher current Habilities

Ohbery paubles

21 Current ta liabilities (net)

Provwwmion fur tan {net of sdvance taa UUSD @61 86 (31 March 2019 USD TI81917)

30 March 2020

£a21000

5,013,101

9.7

59,731

B Magch 2049

1133 06)

1333263

#50227

£30.217
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{Curmency, LISTH
M1 Murch 2020
11  Hevenoe from operationy
Saly af products
Stock 4n-Trade T30
‘l‘lil.ﬁ‘.lli
Reconcilmtion of revenoe frem operstions with costrced parbes
onraciod price 341.957,758
Adpustmems
- Charpebech. rebates and dncousie 260 554,009
- Sales rymen 6480111
« Dnbers 15528118
S of product AN
13 Purchase of wock-in-trade BI044108
34 Changes in laventories of finished goody, werk-in-progress and stock-
Im-trade
Iwvemsmries 81 v end of the year ©
Stck-in-trade IM
(LY [CRETEL
Invemtories ol the beglaning of the venr .
Sk -m-trade 13,832,350
in 13,831,380
Total changes in inventaries of fnkbed goods, work-in-progres snd (B - (A) L7819
stock-dn-trade -
1% Emplovee beneflt expense
Salancy, wagos, o snd alowsnces 3y 447
Employee welfiers cupenaes 465 pdb
Emmployoe modi option eupone (refer pote 17) 49497
Cammdbution fn statytory funds (i sote 31§ 177550
—00
16 Finance costs
Interest capimees 4 0TE
Inverext on Lesse lability (refer nnte 13) AL 4T
Drther burrorwing cose ® M 1T
® T b G nFL'SDEﬂ.lH,{!IH-th!lllﬂ.'i.lul{rll’trmllut
ITh900
17 Depreciation snd amortisation expenie
Depeeciation of property. plasi snd cguiprmcst (Refer poe T) »ray
Amonsaton of intangible st (Refer nate T) 10,697
Deprecation of nght of e wscts (Refer note T) 147,738
11214

¥ March 2019

41 TR e

4] To9aT4
—_—_—

JapEhN ] 4

144 0ot 511

4105384

6,516,515
41T sTE

14309774

(AN rEE]
13,632,350

11.493.591
11,890 551

(LTIETIT)

LT3
MLETY

164 /47

1274684
4474
10,001
Te 69t

1,509

$1.901

\&
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(Cermmey. USIN
Vi March 220 11 Masch 2019
1§ Other Expenses
Clermy and foawsrding 15Th. 002 1A TH
Scliing expenace 1228302 841 243
Irmirase et L0102
Trwvelling expomes 150,554 156,570
Ismpament kes on financial suen 140 853 -
Telephane, icles & postage LTt W5
Legal and Profesnmal Fees ARATY AT TS
Payreent made 1 madeon.
- Auddt foen 14,000 3
Repairs o athers LT 21 41
Power and fsl 1A R
et drefer mote 33) - [RIE
Mumcolumeuun copomies [ [T
!& 3,366,817

\Z



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Comtinued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2020

{Currency: USD)

29,

30.

Capital Management

Company's policy 15 o maintain a strong capital base so as 10 maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and 1o sustain future development of the business. Management
monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. The
board of directors seeks 1o maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position. Company's target is to achieve a return on capital above 50%, in 2019-20
the return was 40% and i 2018-19 the retum was 48%.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ 1o ‘total equity’. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as toial linbilities, comprising interesi-bearing loans
and borrowings and obligations under finance leases. less cash and cash equivalents and
current investments. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

Company's policy is to keep the ratio below |00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio ai
31 March 2020 was as follows.

usn
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Total Borrowing 5,663,521 4,821,887
Less: cash and cash equivalents 5,857 568 L7010
Adjusted net debe A (194347 2,504 877
Equity B 5,521,926 143875
Adjusted net debt to Equity ratio AB (] 0.75 |

Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used 1o calculate Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share:

Particulars 3 March 2020 31 March 2009
Basic and diluted carnings per share:

Tjuﬁl attnbutable 1o Fquity sharcholders- for Bas< EPS A 2,064,404 1,059,359
(UsD)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (USD) B Nit il
Profit attnbutable to Equity shareholders for computing  C=A-B 2,064, 404 1,088,319
Diluted EFS (USD)

Weighted average number of equity thares owstanding - D 10,000 10,000
for basic eps

Add: Dhlutive effect of option owstandimg- MNumber of E il Ml
Equity Shares

Weighted avermpe number of equity shares for diluted eps. F=D+E 10,000 10,60
Face value per equity share (L'SD) 100 i
Basic earnings per share (LSD) AN 106.44 10993
Diluted earnings per shares (USD) CF 2644 1093
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Employee benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits', the Company offers its employees: Shor-
term employee benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other government
contributions which are due within 12 months after the end of the period in which emplayee
renders the related service. The Company’s accrual on account of vacation habilities
amounted to USD 111,219 (31 March 2019 UISD 98,126),

Retirement plan - The Company provides a 401(k) retirement program for full-ume
employees who are 21 years of age or older. Eligible employees are entitled to participate in
the company offered plan with an oplion 10 contribute up the maximum 3% ol annual base
salary, For employees with an annual base salary above the annual compensation limits, as
determined by the Federal Internal Revenue Service { Federal), the annual APUI contribution
will be capped at 3% of the Federal allowed annual compensation limits. All contributions
are 100% vested immediately to the employee. The company also provides a profit sharing
contribution in to the 401(k) account which is discretionary. The total expense for employee
retirement benefit plan including the profit shanng contribution for the year ended 31 March
2020 was USD 177,550 (31 March 2019 : USD 164,657).

Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management

Fair value measurements LiSD
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Financial instruments by eategory Amortived Cost  Amortised Cost
Finuncial asvets
Trade receivables 55,143,579 28,041,080
Cash and cash equivalents S B57.868 2227010
Tutal financial assets 61,001,447 30,268,094
Financial Hahilities
Lease habilies 949,232 ®
Borrowings 5,663,511 4,821,887
{ther current financial lisbilitics 5,493,453 959,936
Trade payables 56,778,966 12852043
Total Minancial liabilites e 68,535,172 18,633 866

There are no financial instruments classified as Fair Value through profil and loss and fair
value through other comprehensive income. Fair value measurement of lease labilities is
not required.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following risks ansing from financial instruments:
s Credit risk
*  Liguidity risk
o Market nsk
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32.

Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management (Continued)

Risk management framework

The Company's activilies are exposed to financial risks. These risks include market risk,
credit risks and liquidity nisk, The Company's overall risk management program seeks 1o
minimize potentinl adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company through
established policies and processes which are laid down to ascertain the extent of risks, setting
appropnate limits and controls and continuous monitonng and compliance of the same.

i.  Credit risk

Credit risk the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contraet, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks other financial instruments,

Other financial assets

The Company limits 1ts exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with financial
mstitutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors.

Impairment:

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit nsk and expected
credit loss for trade receivables:

31 March 2020
Carrying Welghted average

nmiunt loss rate Luoss allowance

Mot duc 55,042,220 ] -
Mast due upto 180 days 240,914 8% 140,555
Past due 181-365 davs - {19 -
Pust dues 366 - T30 diys . 0% .
Past dues 731 - 1096 days - 0% *
Maore than 109 doys - %o -
$3.284,134 140,555

31 March 20019
Carrying  Weighted average

amount loss rate Loss allowance

Not due 275821158 0% -
Past due upto 150 days 453965 0% -
Past due 181-365 days - "% -
Past dues 366 - 730 days . 0% .
Past dues 731 - 1096 days i .
Maore than 1096 days - I .
28,041,080 =
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The above financial assets were not impaired as there had not been a significant change
in credit quality and the amounts were still considered receivable based on the nature of
the activity of the customer portfolio to which they belong and the type of the customers,
There are no other classes of finuncial assets that are past due but not impaired except
for Trade receivables as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

Trade receivable

Company’s credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions
with its approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions 15
equul to the carrving amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject o
stringent financial, credit and legal verification process, In addition, trade receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure timely collections. Accordingly,
the Company's exposure to bad debis 15 not significant.
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Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management (Continued)

Trade receivable (Continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at cach reporting date on an individual basis for
major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into
homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The caleulation is based
on historical data. The maximum expesure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the
carrying value of each class of financial assets. The company does not hold collateral as
SeCurty.

Expected credit loss assessment

The Company allocates each exposure to o credit risk grade based on a variety of data
that 1s determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (e.g. imeliness of payments,
availuble press information efc.) and applying experienced credit judgement.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting peniod are reviewed by
the Company to determine incumed and expected credit losses. Historical trends of
impatrment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that
the macroeconomic indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergone
any substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit
losses to continue.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Gross Camying amount S55.24K,134 28,041,080
Average Expected Joss rate 0.25% 0,00%%
Carrying amaun! of trade receivitbles (net of impairment) 55,143,579 28,041,080 |

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trude and other receivables
during the year was as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 |
Balance as at the beginning of the year -
Impairment loss recogmsed (net) 140,558
Amounts written off %
Balance as ot the year end 140,555

The impairment loss at 31 March, 2020 related 1o several customers that have defwulted
on their payments to the Company and are nol expected 1o be able o pay their
outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.
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32.  Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management (Continued)

i Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Company may not be able to meet 1s present and future
cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's
objective 15 to, a1 all imes maintain optimum levels of hquidity to meet its cash and
collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its hiquidity position and
deploys a robust cash management system. Working capital requirements are adequately
addressed by intemnally gencrated funds. Trade receivables are kept within manageable
levels.

Company aims to maimtain the level ol its cagh and cash equivalents and other highly
marketable debt investmenis at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on
financial liabilitics over the next six months, The ratio of cash and cash equivalents and
other highly marketable debt mvestments 1o outflows is 0.08 at 31 March 2020
(31 March 2019; 0,05).

Exposure to lguidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial linbilities at the
reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interes
pavments and exclude the impact ¢f nething agreements,

N M::c: 2020 il Contractusl Cak Flows
Muore
0-12 1-2 1.5
Toal months vears VEars l::::
Trade payables S6,77B.966 36775966  56,7TEDG66 -
current
Borrowings L6631521 5663521 5,063,521 -
current
Lease Habilitics 469,232 99012 167250 176,450 255532
Oiher current 5491453 S549145] 5493453 .
Minancial liabilities
Total 68,535,172 6BS3S171  6K103,190 176450 1553532 -
As al Ca r
P e A Contractusl Cash Flows
More
012 1-2 1.5
Yol munths Years  years '::::
Trade payables 12852043 32BSIOMY 32.R52.043 - - -
current
Borrowings carrent 4821887 4821887 4821887 - -
Lease liabilities - - = " -
Oher curremt 959,936 G350 593G 959,936 - -
financial labilities .
Total 18,633,866 35613866  IB61]H66 - -
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32.

33.

Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management (Continued)

iil. Market risk

Market risk is the nsk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market nisk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return. Financial imstruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings,
deposits, mvesimenis, and denvative financial instrumenis. The Company's exposure
from market risks 15 primarily on account of interest rate risk.

a) Currency risk

The Company does not have foreign exchange risk as their entire dealings are in
their Jocal functional currency |.e., US Dollars,

b) Interest rate risk

Company’s exposure 1o changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company”s
short-term debt obligations, Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to fair value
interest rate nsk. The following tzble demonstrates the sensitivity analysis to a
reasonably possible change in miterest rates, with all other variable held constant, of
the Company's profit before income tax. The estimates are based on the outstanding
interest bearing linbilities of the Company with floating interest rate as at 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2019,

UsD

Year Change in interest rate® Effect on profit before tax
31 March 2020 1%/ (-1%) 56,6357 (36,615)
31 March 2019 +1% / {-1%%]) 45,218/ (48.218)

* Holding all other variahle constant

c) Price risk

Company does nol have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments.
Disclosure for leases:

The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease 1s for a period of five
year and renewable every year upon mutual consent of the parties. There are no contingent
rents,

Transition

Effective | Apnil | 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the
standard to all lease coniracts existing on | April 2019 using the modified retrospective
method and has taken the cumulative adjusiment to retained eamings, on the date of mitial
application. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments discounted at the generally accepted interest rate and the right of use
asset at ils carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement
date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted interest rate at the date of ininal
application. Comparatives as ot and for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue 1o be reported under the accounting
policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended 31 March 2019.

¥



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: USD)

33

Disclosure for leases (Continued)

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulied in recognition of "Right of Use’ asset
of USD 726,830 and a lease liability of USID 737,763, The cumulative effect of applying the
standard, amounting 1o USD 30,933 was debited 1o retained eamings, netof taxes. The effect
of this adoption 1s insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and eamings
per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and
an inerease in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments,

The following 1s the summary of practical expedients elected on imitial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in sirilar economic
environment with a similar end date.

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with
less than 12 menths of lease term on the date of mitial application,

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application.

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessmeni of which transactions are
leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 15 applied only to contracts that were previously identified
o5 leases under Ind AS 17,

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of 31 March 2019 under Ind AS 17
disclosed under Note 24 of the 2019 Annual Report and the value of the lease liability as of
| April 2019 is prnimanly on account of inchision of extension and termmation oplions
reasonably certain fo be exercised, 1n measuring the lease hability in accordance with Ind
AS 116 and discounting the lease liabilities to the present value under Ind AS 116,

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at | April 2019 is 5.50%.

Right-of-use asscts

Land and Buildings Total

s usn

Cost
Asatl April 201% 126,830 T26,830
Additions
Dusposals
Balance a1 31 March 2020 726,830 726,830
Accamulated depreciation and impairment
As ut | Apnl 2019 - -
Depreciation 167,730 167,730
Impaument loss - -
Eliminated on disposals of assets . -
Halunee at 31 March 2020 167,730 167,730
Carrying amounts
Asat | Apnl 2019 726,830 716,830
Balance at 31 March 2020 559,100 559,100

&
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Cash outflow on leases

Pariculars 31 March 2020
LsDh
Cash outflow on leases {200,208)
Total cash outflow on leases (200,208}
Maturity analysis
Paruculars Liess than Over | vears Welghted average
1 year elfective interest rate %
LiSD UsD
31 March 2020
Lease liabilities 167250 43].982 5.50%

Impact of changes in accounting policies
The following table provides the extract of impacts of adopting Ind AS 116 on the financial

statements
i Statement of financial position
Impact of changes in sccounting policies
1 April 2019 As pirevicusly
Usn

reporied Adjostments  As restated

Right-of-use assets 726,830 726,810

|
Tolal assels - 716,830 726,830

Lease habilites . 757,763 757,763
Total liabilithes . 787,763 787,763
Retained eamings . (30,933} (30,933)
Total equity . (30,933} (30.933)

ii. Statement of profit or loss and OC1

Impact of changes in accounting policies
For the year ended 31 March 2020 As previously
usb reported  Adjustments  As restated
Lease expenses 200,208 (204.208) -
Depreciation 53484 167,730 221,214
Financing cost on leases . 41677 41677
Loss/{Profit) 151,692 9,199 262,891
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iil. Statement of cash Mow

Impact of changes in accounting policies

For the vear ended 31 March 1020 Al previously

LsD reported Adjustments  As restated
Profit 1,589,128 - 1,859,128
Adpstments for;

Finance costs recognised in profit or loss . 41,677 41,677
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets - 167,730 167,730
Net cash from operating activities 1,889,128 09407 1098515
Payment of lease liabilities - (200.208)  (200.208)
Net cash from financing activities - (100,208}  (200.208)

The following table provides extract of effect on both basic and dilmed eamings per share

For the year ended 31 March 2020  Increase/ (decrease) in Imcreasel (decrease)  Increase’ (decrease)
profit for the year in basic carnings per  in diluted earnings
attributable to owners af  share per share
the Company

L'sD USD per share LISD per share

Changes in accounting policics

relating to.

= adoption of Ind AS 116 (9.199) (0.92) (0.92)

Reconciliation between operating lease commitments disclosed in March 2019 financials

applying Ind AS 17 and lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet

PFarticalars Amouni in L'SD
Operating lease commitments disclosed in March 2019 financials (under Ind AS 17) 874,026
Less; Duscounting impact (116,263)
Lease hisbilitics recognised in the statement of financ il position as st | Apnl 2019 157763
Sales return for expired goods
USD
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 Mirch 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 959,936 1,804,157
Add: Provisions madc during the yea 7397663 BR1, 194
Less: Amount written back/utilized during the year 2 564,146 1,725415
Balance 3t the end of the year 5,493,453 959,936

Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent liabilitics and commitments by the Company.
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36.  Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relationships:
Category | — Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India (Holding Company)

Category 11 - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Dr. Ramesh Jhawar Dieector (APUL)

B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties:

UsSD
[ Sr.  Particolars Category 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No.
I L. Purchase of Goods:
Ajants Pharma Lid., India I 62,044,126 15,209,774
' L Key Management Compensation:
Short Term Employee Benefits
Dr. Ramesh Jhuwar ] 450,000 421,500
3, Redimbursement from Ajania Pharma 1 817230 1,242,944
Lid., India
4. Commission paid to Ajants Pharma I 1M o 144
Lud.
LS Employee steck option I 49 697 Nil
) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 2020
LSD
Sr.  Particolars Category 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mo,
1. Trade Payahle :
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India | 56,778,964 12 852042

37.  Share based payments

The Holding Company has established “Employees Stock Options Scheme 20117 ("ES05 -
2011") as approved in earlier year by the shareholders of the Company and Compensation
committee of Board of Directors for the key employees of the Company. The options issued
under the ahove scheme vest in a phased manmner.

The Holding Company in 2019 introduced a compensation scheme, to award the scheme
participants (including employees of the Company), options of the holding Company based
on the grant letter provided to such employees. The options have a graded vesting schedule
with the vesting date and exercise price. Each option under the grants will be convertible to
one share of the holding Company and will be convertible into equity shares only. As per
the plan, holder of vested options are entitled to purchase one equity share of holding
Company of Rs 2 each for every option al an exercise price of Rs 1.
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3.

Share based payments (Continued)

During the year 500 options have been granted by the Company under the aforesaid Share
based Incentive Plan 2019 to the employees of the Company.

Grant Daie No. of eptlon No. of Option Exercise Price Vesting Period
Granted Cancelled
27 Seplember 500 il 2 27 August 2021
2019

The options are granted at an exercise price which is m accordance with the relevant SEBI
guidelines in force, at the time of such grants. Each option entitles the holder to exercise the
right 1o apply for and seck allotment of one equity share of? 2/- each. The particulars of the
options under ESOS 2011 and Share based Incentive Plan 2019 are as under:

Pirikiali 1 Ml\r:: 020 E]]| M:: 019
Oprions outstanding as &1 the beginning of the Year® 11,500 4, D)
Add: Options granted duning the Year S0 5,000
Less: Options exercised during the Year 6,500 6,500
Lees: Options lapsedicancelled during the Year - 2,000
Options outstanding as st the Year End 5,500 11,500

* During the current year, holding company has reimbursed cost pertaming to options of
carlier years

Weighted  Weighted
3 March2020  REmReol e Average

S N, :;:u'ht Exercise Coniractual
“®  prices(®  life(Years)
Options outsianding as at the 11,500 20 20 0.9
beginning of the year
Add: Options granied dunng the S0 20 20 0
year
Less: Optious exereised duning 6,500 0 0 NA
the year
Less: Options lapsedicancelled - . - -
during the year
Oprions outstanding as al the 5,500 20 20 0.7
year end
|
Particulars 31 March 2019 Range of Weighted Weighted
Mos, Exercise Average Average
Prices () Exercise Contractual life
Prices () (Years)
Options outstanding s af the 14,000 20 20 1.0
heginning of the Year
Add: Options granted during the 6,000 20 20 20
Year
Less: Options Exercived duning 6,500 0 20 NA
the Year
Less: Options lapsed/cancelled 2,000 . . .
during the Year
Options outstanding 35 at the 11,500 10 20 0e
Year End

2



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Currency: USD)
37, Share based payments (Continued)

Drescription of the method and significant assumplions used during the year 1o estimate the
fair values of the optians, including the following weighted average information:

Variables Weighted Average Information
Plan ESOS 2011 / Share Based Incentive Plan 2019 ‘
;I:I: :::l:u 2,000 option 6,000 option S00 option

Cirant date 6 July 26 July 1T August 3} Ociober 27 September
2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 |

Last date for acceptance 26 August 16 August 12 September 30 November 22 August |
2016 2006 017 2018 2021

Risk free e (%) 73 73 7.5 74 53

Expected Life (years) Tl ltod Twd 2 2

Volatility (%) 1023 2023 172 1342 13,74

Duvidend yreld (%) 053 (.53 43 08 0.55

Price of the underlying | 478 1,702 1,153 | 058 1,055

thare in the market at the

time of option grant (T)

Faur value of options (¥) | 453 1,453 1,142 1,043 1.1

Exercise prce (F) - 2 . 2 2

Valuation of stock options

The fair value of stock options granted dunng the period has been measured using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model at the date of the grant. The Black-Scholes option pricing
model includes assumptions regarding dividend yields, expected volatility, expected terms
and risk free interest rates. They key inputs and assumptions used are as follows:

Share price: The closing price on NSE 25 on the date of grant has been considered for
valuing the options granted.

Exercise Price; Exercise Price is the market price or face value or such other price as
determined by the Remuneration and Compensation Committee.

Expected Yolatility: The historical volatility of the stock ull the date of grant has been
considered to calculate the fair value of the options,

Expected Option Life: Expected Life of option 1s the peniod for which the Company expects
the options to be live. The minimum life of a stock option is the minimum period before
which the options cannot be exercised and the maximum life is the period after which the
options cannol be exercised.

Expected dividends: Expected dividend yield has been calculated as an average of dividend
yields for four vears preceding the date of the grant.

Risk free interest rate: The nisk frec interest rate on the date of grant considered for the
calculation is the interest rate applicable for a maturity equal 1o the expected life of the
options based on the zero coupon yield curve for Government Securities.



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: USD)

) i

Share based payments (Continued)

These assumptions reflect management’s best estimates, but these assumptions involve
inherent market unceriainties based on market conditions generally outside of the
Company’s control. As a result, if other assumptions had been used in the current period,
stock-based compensation expense could have been materially impacted. Further, if
management uses different assumptions m future peniods, stock based compensation
expense could be materially impacted in future years. The estimated fair value of stock
options is charged 1o income on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of each
separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in-substance, multiple awards,

Income Tax

Income tax (expense) / benefit rocogmized in the income statement consists of the following:

3 March 2020 3] March 2019
Cuorrent tax
Current tax on profit for the vear 514,051 329,811
Adgustment for current tax of prior periods (650.227) 141,387
Total Current Tax expenses (136,176) 471,200
Deferred tax expense/{benefit)
Origination ind reversal of tming difference (39.100)
Total Deferred Tax expenses (39.100) .
Total incomie tax recognised In the income statement (175,276) 471,200
Reconciliation of effective tay rate

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Accounting profit before inceme taxes | BBS. 128 1,570,519
Enacted tax mte in LISA® 2% 2%
Computed expected tax (benefil) [ expenses 390,717 329813
Adjustment for current 1ax of prior penods (650,227) 141,387
Expenses that are not deductible in determining 6.174 .
taxuble profit
Expenses not deducted in books but allowed for tax (20.245)
purposc
State Taxes 16,590
Effect of instating opening halance of deferred tax (1.785) -
Effect of instating opening balance of current tax T1.500 =
Income lax expenses (175,276) 471,200
Effective tax rate 9% k1

*The tax rate used for the above reconciliation is the corporate tax rate applicable to the
Company under tax laws of United States of America.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Currency: USD)
38. Income Tax (Continued)

. Recognised deferred asset and liability
Deferred tax Net deferred tay
Dreferred tax asset lisbilities wsset/(Tabilities)
L n i M L} N
March  March  March  March  March March
w me 020 e 020 me
Property ,Plant and equipment . - 25827 - (25920
Leave Encashment 24,364 - - - 24369
Provision for Loss Allowance 27.004 - - . 27,004
Guaranice Fees paid to holding company 6,573 - - - 6.573
Stock option T.081 - . - T.081
Met deferred tax asset/(labilities) 65,027 - 25927 - 19,100
d. Movement in deferred tax balances 31 March 21020
Nit balanece Recogni Nel Deferred Deferred
ason | sed in tax assel tax
April 2919 Frafit liabilities
and loss
Property . Plant and equipment . (25921 (25927 - (25.927)
Leave Encashment - 24,369 24,369 24,369 -
Provision for Loss Allowance . 27,004 27,004 27,004
CGuarantee Fees paid 10 holding 6573 6.573 6.573 .
company
Stock option . 7081 7081 7.081 -
MNet deferred tax assev/(liabilities) - 39,100 39,100 65,027 (25.927)
. Movement in deferred tax balances 31 March 2019
Net balance Recogn Net Deferred Deferred
nion | inedin fan asset ta
April 2018 Profit liabilities
and
loss
Property  Plant and equipment . 5 =
Leave Encashment - -
Provision for Loss Allowance - - : . -
Guarantee Fees pund 10 holding .
company
Stock option - = = = -
Met defermed tax asset/(liabilitics) - - - - -
39.  Comparative numbers for previous years are as audited by a firm of Chartered Accountant @J}‘l

otherthan BS R & Co, LLP.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: USD)

40.  Impact of COVID - 19 (Global pandemic)

The extent of the impact of COVID 19 suthreak on operations of the Company will depend
on future developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, related advisories
and resirictions, Government actions, the impact on financial markets and the overall
economy, all of which are highly uncertain and can't be predicted. If the financial markets
and/or the overall economy are impacted for an extended period, the Company's operations
may be affected. However, the Company does not expect that the outhreak will have material
adverse effect on operations or financials results at this time.

41. The Company has one segment of acuvity namely “Pharmaceuticals”

In terms of our report anached

For BS R & Co. LLP For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ajanta Pharma USA Inc.

Firm Registration No: 101 248W/W-100022
—.——&@ L] Mhr‘! \F

Sreeja Marar Yogesh M. Agrawal
Partner Director
Membership No: 111410 DIN ; 00073673
Mumbai Mumbai

20 May 2020 20 May 2020
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd.{Consolidated)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD and AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS
INTERNATIONAL LTD. are being audited under the local laws of the country by the statutory auditor
for the period 15t Jan 2019 to 31st December 2019, Financial Statements of AJANTA PHARMA
MAURITIUS LTD. consolidated with Ajanta Pharma Mauritius International Lid for the period 151 April
2019 o 31st March 2020. The holding company Ajanta Pharma Limited (India) follows the period 1st
April 2019 10 315t March 2020, In order to consolidate the accounts of Ajama Pharma Mauritius Lid
(Consolidated) with that of the holding company, we have been appointed by the management of the
company 1o audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. (Consolidated) for
the period 1st April 2019 to 315t March 2020 under the companies Act in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consclidated Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. (CONSOLIDATED) (“the Company™) (hereinafter referred to as
the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as “the Group”), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred 1o as “the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements”) prepared in accordance with group accounting
policies followed by Ajanta Pharma Lid. These Consolidated financial statements have been
prepared solely 1o enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us,
the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conlormity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the




Cade of Ethicy issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethies. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our
apinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the cument peniod. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irrcgularitics; sclection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that arc reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 1o the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management ¢ither intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremenis

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the pumoses of our audit,

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
s0 far as it appears from our examination of those books

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1st March, 2020
tiuken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March,
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect 10 the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A"

(g) With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including denvative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for matenial foreseeable
losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FORG R MODI & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(PARTNER.)
M NO., 107574
Mumbai
8th May 2020
UDIN : 20107574AAAABA 1146




Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
MAURITIUS LTD. (Consolidated) (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining imternal financial
controls based on the miemal contol over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intermal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operaling
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 1o
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on pur audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 10 the extent applicable 10 an audit of intemal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Intermal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matenal respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating eflectiveness. Our
audit of intenal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated  financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pmvide_ a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

ri:pnr'lin_g.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's intemmal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepled
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due 1o error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the imemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

lnpuur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FORG RMODI& CO

(PARTNER.)
M NO. 107574

Mumbai
&th May 2020
UDIN : 20107574AAAABAT146



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2020 ]
: 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
o T Mote | Rs.inlacs Rs. in Lacs
Assets |
Non-current assets B il
Property, plant and equipment B | 658.91 | 61_‘53
Right to use assets = || 85.80
Financial assets S I I
Investments - 9 | 1,227.20 1,298.76
Other financial assets 10 | 12.69 2415
Total non-current assets | 1,994.60 1,937.80
Current assets
Inventories - ) o 1| 3708 477.13
“Financial assets - [ — = ]I
~ Trade receivables 12 3,290.68 3,543.04
Cash and cash equivalents - 11 2,907.71 4,121,324
Dther current assets 14 2,490.60 1,564.02
Total current assets | 9,066.78 | 9,705.53
Total assets | 11,061,38 | 11,643,33
| !
Equity And Liabilities ) I
eauty —
‘Equity share capital _ B |5 94381  943B
‘Other Equity I 18 8,895.45 9,760.17
Total equity 9,839.26 10,703.98
Liabilities T
"Hon current labilities N B N )
Lease liability - v 89.79
Current llabilities -
Other current Liabilities 18 1,132 n*' 939.35
Total current liabilities | 1,132.32 §39.35
Total equity and liabilities 11,061.38 |  11,643.33

S‘rgniﬁcml accounting policles

The note referred to above form part of an Consalidated imm!:.l. statement

As per our repnf-t-ul even date attached

‘Mumbal, 8 May, 2020

hmmmfwrmw'tlttmhﬁ_l - =1 £ .
FOR G R MOD! & CO For and on behalf of Board of Directors
CHARTERED AH.WMMITS of Ajanta | l"lunm m-lw‘itllu} Limited
|1uutmtll.h =i |
M NO, 107574 — _ Yogesh M. Agrawal
- T | Director

UDIN : 2010757 4AAAABA1146




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited —

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2020

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
I Note | F3. inlacs Rs. in Lacs
Income | |
Revenue from operations Cl 19 T 3,537.79 | 25,904.05
Other income S T 20 885.28 | {124.79)
Total income | | 32,413.06 15,779.15
Expenses |
~ Cost of matenials consumed h - 21 410.93 | 112.04
 Purchase of stock-in-1rage a 2 10,308.48 | 6,954.79
Changes in inventories of finished goods/work-in-progress/stock-in-trade B bz 112.29) 1,084,47
“Employee benefits expenses T o T 2a | a_si'w I 732.48
Finance costs [ 5 | 9.01 | :
Depreciation and amortisation expense T T wsar 62.76
Other expenses A 12,691.83 | 1161852
Total expenses . 2417454 10,765.06
Profit before tax I 8,148.51 5014.20
Tax expense | R
Current tax | . 191.42 | ERENCT
 Deffered tax = il : . :
Profit for the year | 7,857.10 4,880.29
Other comprehensive income / (oss) S ‘
hemsﬂulvdllbtmh:ﬂﬁod:ub&nqumﬂlylﬂpmﬂtwm - _ | —_—
Ex:hafm- differences on transiation of fwlgn ) operations _ (316.92) {30.20)
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss | | -
Net other comprehensive income / (1os3) to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss T Biesy (30.20)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the ',.'w. “net of tax | (216.92) (30.20)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year | 7.540.18  4,850.09
Earning per equity share (Basic & Diluted) (Face value MUR100/-) 29 | 1,280.09 795.11

Srgranllcaqt acmth‘l-l pollc‘.es

[ The note rglerm:l to above form part of an Consolidated fina financial statement

mbDr
(PARTNER.)
M NO. 107574

‘Mumbai, 8 May, 2020
UDIN : 20107574AAAABAT146
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| Yogesh M. Agraval
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| Mumbal, 8 May, 2020




Agunin Plarmas (Maurito) Limited |
 Seascment of Comolidated Cash Mow for the year ended 31 March 2020 | = (¥ in Laga)
31 March 2020 31 Mareh 1019
A | Conh N from aperating sctivitio = [i— — =
Pl [ ] CIE S
Apnonm by | I )
L Dieprecistion amd ammontsation ovpomes  — MI-H | &7
| Fameccows | | o voi x
Linrtadmed forrgn oxchangs dafforemee EV18.%2) (M0
e | Ciperating cash flow before warking capital changr [ ShieTe
Changrs in working capial | T E—
Diecrenss ! (imereai| m rd:ndnhmah 25138 1631432
Dnmflmihuhmmm Lt | ;Ml;
Drecroase / (increase ) i otbes curross amets (926 48} (415 83)
Dlw-l' "lml " i BT T w4 116843
Increnss 1 decrease) e other curmm liabalitsey i (42 4%
i Cash grueraind Irom speratiom: Fe——1——— “TAeER I
Nt mcoine b paud | ] Ay [T
fi | mu.-nurr-qurq P AT il TATRLI |
) e === =l
| B Cash fow from investing sctivities B
Capital evpenditiare on property. mnmmm ) 166 M)
Capital expendshare on raght o use st {138 70) .
T —— - B (TR
[ _."L“I!“_'_"‘!'L"’]'."!"‘f[‘"“ 1008 IWIT.TS)
%+ -
|| €. | Cash Bow frem fimsscieg sctivities __!— RS
| wau:m-mmh—| R
| Tanerest pud | | —wan :
Drlendpuad | | | [ 6,097 83
Net carh wsed in fnancing sctivities . 831411} 107,85
I | R | T——
Net increase / decrease) in cash and cash equivaleats = [N LiTLa
fil-&mh enta me at the begirnmig of the yeas i T AR L |
Cash sl e oxquivahonts aa i the ond of the year 19071 HED
Frpures o brachets indicases outflirm

Sair
emcler Soctian 13 of the Compaea Aca M1

|t or ke from the dase of soguinition |

Sugrificant sccoumemg poliches
The nane referred 1o shove form part of e Crowolalated B i ol

A per oar report of gven dade sciached
i aeres of war report siteshed

FOR G R MO0 & CO

Musbai, § May, 2020
LN - 20 0TS MAAAARAL LS

1 The shove Cash Flow Statemess has been prepared onder Trdmect ethod @ set. 0w i Accommting Standard 7 (Ind AS - T) “Stasemnemt of Cash Flow®

2 Cab compnses canh on haad. currens socosnts aed deposits with hanks Casd equividents o sholn-term halancen | with an ongeal matanty of thiee

Fiur wnd om behall of Boaril of Direciaes of
Agamts Fharms | Mawerine ) Lamapod

—-Hﬁ}cmr«ﬂ

Yagrah M. Agrawal
Derecion
Musmibai, § May, 2020




Ajarts Prarms (sgurtia) Lid

Canmubidated Lialament of Changes in Dguity lor tha year erded 11 March 1000

A Lty Thare Cagleal £ inin
Baderce aa o 1 aprdl JOTR  Changes in egusty thae  Balance s st 11 sarch
_ capeital huring the yea! 3030
| Aitmermiad TR [RTTET]
| Sal e Wi
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

1.

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) L. is a limited lability company incorporated and domiciled in
Mauritius and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India. The address of its
registered office is located at BPML Building, Royal Road, Goodlands, Mauritius, The Consolidated
Financial statement (“CFS") comprises the Company and its subsidiary (referred 10 collectively as
the “Group™).

The Group is primarily involved in manufacturing and marketing of speciality pharmaceutical
quality finished dosages.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 8 May, 2020.

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS") read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
basis, which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount wherever applicable.

Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiary Ajanta Pharma Mauritius (Im'l) Lid. The financial statements of the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses after eliminating
intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profits resulting there from and are
presented 1o the extent possible, in the same manner as the Group's independent financial
statements. The statement of profit and loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
atiributed 1o the equity holders of the Company.

These consolidated financial statemems of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been
consolidated using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. The financial
stalements of the subsidiaries used in consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as thal
of the Company i.e.. year ended 31 March 2020,

Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional Currency of the Company is Mauritian Rupee (MUR). These financial statements are
prepared & presented in Indian Rupees (INR) as it is the functional currency of the Holding

Company,
Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lacs,
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7.1

Current versus non-current classification:

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/non-curremt
classification.

An asset is current when it is:

* Expecied 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

» Expected to be realised within twelve momhs after the reporting period, or

e (ash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period,
All other assets are classified as Non-Current,

A liability is current when it is:

» Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

s Due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are treated as Non=-Current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively,

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activitics of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable 10 the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured relinbly,

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Leasehold Improvement 20 vears
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings | 2 10 6 years
Office Equipmenls 2 10 4 years
Plant & Machinery 5 1o 20 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement of profit or loss.
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7.2

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial Assets
Classification

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contraciual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset,

Initinl Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

» Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)

» Financial nssets at amortised cost

When assets are measured a1 fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of principal and interest. Such
financial assels are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR})
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statemenl
of profit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FYTOCI™)
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair

value, when asset is held within a business model. whose objective is to hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized

in the other comprehensive income.
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value throvgh Profit or Loss (“FYTPL"™)

Financial assets under this categorv are measured initially as well as at each reporting date al fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCL. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
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are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Investment in Debt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCL. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOC]I, is classified as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities
Classification

The Group classifics all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial linbilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
pavables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including hank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost vsing the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the cbligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial hability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liabilily and the recognition
of & new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
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1.5

7.6

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency conlracts to mitigate its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised ar fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured ot fair
vilue. Derivatives are camried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liahilities when the fair value is negative

loventories

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost (on moving weighted average basis)
and net realisable value, cost of which includes duties and taxes. Cost of imported raw materials and
packing materials lying in bonded warchouse includes the amount of customs duty. Finished
products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is arrived at on moving weighted average basis,

The cost of Inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion,
appropriate share of fixed production overhcads based on normal capacity and other related cost
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Slow and non-moving material, obsolesces, defective inventory are fully provided for and valued a1
net realisable value.

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet.
Materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down, if the
finished products in which they will be used are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposithighly liguid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known ameunts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose
of statement of cash flow.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and ftem of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the vear-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost,

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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7.7

The Group recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. In
accordance with Ind-AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the Group recognises
revenue by applying the following five steps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

The Group applies the revenue recognition model 1o each contract with a customer once it is
probable the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled, Contracts for this
purpose may be written, verbal or implied by customary business practices, but must be
enforceable and have commercial substance. In evaluating whether collection is probable, the
Group considers only the customer’s ability and intention to pay the consideration when due.

Step 2: Idemtify the performance obligations in the contract

Once the contract has been identified, the Group evaluates the terms and customary business
practices to identify which promised goods or services should be accounted for as separate
performance obligations. The key determinant for identifying a separate performance obligation
is whether a good or service, or a bundle, is distinet. A good or service is distinet if the customer
can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other readily available
resources and the good or service is separately identifiable from other promises in the contracl.
The Group treats each distinet good or service as a separate performance obligation.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled and
includes:

-An estimate of any variable consideration determined using either a probability-weighted
expected value or the most likely amount, whichever better predicts the amount of consideration
1o which the Group will be entitled

-The effect of the time value of money, if there is a financing component that is significant 10
the contract

=The fair value of any non-cash consideration
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

The Group usually allocates transaction price to each separate performance obligation on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. When determining stand-alone selling prices, the Group
uses observable information, if it is available. IT stand-alone selling prices are not directly
observable, the Group estimates such prices based on reasonably available information, e.g.
adjusted market assessment approach or an expected cost plus a margin approach. Only when
the stand-alone selling price of a goed or service is highly variable or uncertain, the Company
use residual approach for allocation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The Group determines whether it satisfies performance obligation by transferring control of a
promised good or service over time or al a point in time lo the customer. A performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which
case, it is satisfied over time:

-The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs
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-The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced

The Group's performance does not ereate an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. Revenue from
sale of goods is recognised, when all significant risks and rewards are transferred to the buyer,
as per the terms of contracts and no significant uncertainty exists regarding amount of the
consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the extent that buyer, usually on delivery of goods, it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow 1o the Group, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, there is neither continung management involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold and the amount of and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made reliably. The
Group is principal in all of its revenue arrangements, since it is the primary obligor in all of the
revenue arrangements, as it has pricing latitudz and is exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Provisions for chargeback, rebates and discounts are estimated and provided for in the year of sales
and recorded as reduction of revenue.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Amount disclosed
as revenue are inclusive of Excise Duty, excluding Goods and Service Tax (GST), Sales Tax or
Value Added Taxes or Service Taxes or Dutics collected on behalf of the government, and net of
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

When the financing element is significant, the Group adjusts the transaction price for the time value
of money. The objective, when adjusting the consideration for a significant financing component, is
10 recognise revenue at the cash selling price.

Revenue from sale of technology ( know how (rights, licences and other intangibles) are recognised
when performance obligation is completed as per the terms of the agreement. Incomes from services
are recognised when services are rendered,

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Insurance and other claims are recognised as
arevenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes
are accounted to the extent considered receivable.

Dividend income is recognised when the Entity’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering service are classified as short
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, shori-term compensated absences.
performance incentives etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the
period in which the employee renders related service.

(i) Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

The Group pavs Social Security Cost as per local regulations, The Group has po further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted
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for as defined contribution plans ané the contributions are recognized as emplovee benefit
expense when they are due, Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of severance
allowances payable under the Employment Rights Act 2008 is provided for. The obligations
arising under this item are not funded

(ii)  Share-based compensation
The Group has no share based compensation plan,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of an asset thal
necessarily lakes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing cosis.

Lease

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
coniains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 10 control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contral the
use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recogmizes a right-of-use asset (“ROL™)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cosl
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorier of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use} is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not gencrate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGL) 1o
which the asset belongs,

The lease liability is initially measured a1 amortized cost a1 the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease
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liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash Nlows.,

Leases for which the Company is & lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all
lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the
generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrving amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as a1 and for the vear ended March 31,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Repori for year ended March 31, 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of
2128.70 Lacs and a lease liability of 2128.70 Lacs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard,
amounting to TNil Lacs was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is
insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will
result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash onflows from
financing activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portiolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recogmze right-of-use assets and liabilitics for leases with less
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

¢. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d.  Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases,
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only 1o contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17,

The difference between the lease obligntion recorded as of March 31. 2019 under Ind AS 17
disclosed under Note 21 of the 2019 Annual Report and the value of the lease hability as of April 1,
2019 is primarily on account of inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain 1o
be exercised, in measuring the lease lability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the
lease liabilities to the present value under Ind AS 116,

The interest rate applied 1o lease liabilities as at April 1. 2019 is 7%.

Earnings Per Share
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Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic carnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value, Dilutive potential equity sharss are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented,

Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the year
calculated on the basis of tax laws cnacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period,

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method. on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period and
are expected 1o apply in the peried when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Dividends to Shareholders

Annual dividend distribution to the sharcholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved hy the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board of Directors, Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

General

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate assel but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using o current pre-lax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

» A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required 1o settle the obligation;
A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;
A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remole,

Contingent liabilities are nol recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each halance
sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises in a
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added 1o or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113,

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

*  Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank.

#  Mutual Funds are measured at fair velues as per Net Asset Value (NAV),

»  Emplovee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability o
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another
market participant that would use the asset in it highes! and best use,
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available 1o measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole:

= Level | — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.

s  Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly pbservable.

»  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fir
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
calegorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Recent accounting propouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingem liahilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment 10 the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods.

{a) Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. Al the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease,
the Group separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values,

The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases,

ib) Multiple element contracis with vendors

The Group has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods and
rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent of the value
of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the
Group has economic ownership in these assets. The Group believes that the current
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement,

ic) Determination of functional currency
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(d)

(e)

(n

(g

Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency (the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) and items included in the financial
statements of cach entity are measured using that functional currency. Ind AS 21, “The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™ prescribes the factors to be considered for
the purpose of determination of furctional currency. Management uses its judgement lo
determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions.

Property, Plant and equipment

Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as 1o which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life
of useful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries, Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components of the cost of the assel may be capitalised.

Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Imangible assets.
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions, Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectancy, The discount rate is determined with
reference 1o market vields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond 10 the probable maturity of the post-
employment benefit obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred tax asset is recogmsed for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred tax assets and liabilities, The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead 1o significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
slatements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority, Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses 10 the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
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(h)

(i)

iy

(k)

(h

be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments,

Recognition and measurement of nther provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, il any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Group as it is not possible 1o predict
the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
life of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumption and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing markel condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Group has reasonable certainty of recovery.

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (*CGL!")
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
1o sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required 1o be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management’s expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved,
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29,

Capital Management

Group's policy is 1o maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and 10 sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on
capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. The board of directors seeks to maintain
a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Group's target is 1o achieve a return on
capital above 30%; in 2019-20 the return was 84% and in 2018-19 the return was 47%.

Group menitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ 1o "adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted
net deb is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations
under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and short term investments, Adjusted equity
comprises all components of equity.

Group's policy is 1o keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt 1o equity ratio at 31 March 2020

was as follows, ¥in Lacs
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Debt (Debt + Current Liabilities) 1,132.32 039,35
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 2,907.71 4,121.4
Net Debt A (1,775.39) (3,181.90)
Equity B 9,839.26 10,703,985
Net Debt to Equity ratio A/B - -
Earnings Per share (EPS):
The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Eamings per Share:
31 March 31 March
Farticainry 2020 2019
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Profit anributable 10 Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS (2 in A 7.857.10 4,880.29
Lacs)
Add: Dilutive effect on profit (2 in Lacs) B Nil Nil
Profit attributable to Equity shareholders for computing Diluted | C=A-B 7.857.10 4.880.29
EPS (% in Lacs)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding - for D 6,13,791 6.13,791
Basic EPS
Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number of Equity E Nil Nil
Shares
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS F=I+E f.13,791 613,791
Face Value per Equity Share (MUR) 100 100
Basic Earnings Per Share (3) AD 1,280.09 795.11
Diluted Earnings Per Shares (3) C/F 1,280.09 795.11
Employee Benefits
As required by Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, the Group offers its emplovees Social Security Cost and
Severance Allowance. During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the account:
Tin Lacs
Particulars | 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Social Security Cost | 12.26 14.45
Severance Allowance | 6.58 6.26
Total 18,84 20.71
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For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of severance allowances
payable is provided for under the Employment Rights Act. It has been assumed that the rate of future

31.

salary increases will be equal to the discount rate

Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management

Fair value measuremenis ¥in Lacs
31 March 2020 3 March 2019

Financial Instruments by category FVTPL | Amortised Cost | FVTPL | Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Invesiment in Mutual Funds 1,227.20 1,298.76
Trade Receivables 3.290.68 3.543.04
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 2269 24.15
Cash and cash equivalents 2.807.71 4,121.24
Total Financial Assets 1,227.20 6,221.08 | 1,298.76 7,688.43
Financial Liabilitics
Other Current Financial Liabilities 1,132.32 939. Ei_l
Total Financial Liabilities 1,132.32 93935 |
Fair Value Hicrarchy 2 in Lacs

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair Level Level
value

1 11 111 1 1l [11]
Financial assels
Non recurring fair value measurement
Investment in Mutual Funds 12920 | - -1 1,298.76 | - -
Trade Receivables - | -1 3,290.68 - | -] 3.543.04
Other Non-Current Financial Assels = = 22,69 «| - 24.15
Cash and cash equivalents - =] 2,807.71 «| =] 4,121.24
Total Financial Assels 1,227.20 | -| 6,221.08 | 1,298.76 | - | 7.688.43
Financial Liabilities
Other Current Financial Liabilities =| = | 1,L132.32 = | - 939.35
Total Financial Liabilities -1 -] 113232 - 939.35

Level 1 = The hierarchy in level 1 includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like forward
contracts) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value as
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs 1s not based on observable mark,ﬂ data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, ete. included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management

Group has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:

v Credit risk
+ Liquidity risk
s Market risk
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Risk management framework

Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishmem and oversight of the
Company s risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee,

Group's risk management policies are established 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence 1o limits. Risk managemem
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's
activities. Group, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations,

Group's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in jts oversight role by internal
audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed 1o credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers

is as follows:

¥in Lacs

Particulars

31 March 2020

Not past due but impaired

3 March 2019

Not past due not impaired

Past due not impaired

3.290.68

3,543.4

- 1-180 days

3,230.02

334269

- 181-365 davs 61).66

- more than 365 days - 200.35

Past due impaired =

- 1-180 days -

- 181-365 days -

- more than 365 days =

a) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables, which
are non-interest bearing, are mainly from stockists, distributors and customers, Except for, one
large lient, the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over
a number of counterparties and customers, The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups
and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The
maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets. The group does not hold collateral as security. The group evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.
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b) Financial instruments
Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by
mutual funds having a credit ranking of atleast 3 and above from CRISIL or equivalent rating
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ranking,
Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk. the Company adjusts its exposure 1o
various counterparties,

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Group's objective is to, at all times
maintain optimum levels of liguidity 1o meet its cash and collateral requirements, The Group closely
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate
sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost.
Working capital requirements ure adequately addressed by internally generated funds. Trade
reccivables are kept within manageable levels.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices — will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments, The objective of market risk management is 1o manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial
instruments. Group's ucfivities expose it o a variety of financial risks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. All transactions are carried out within
the guidelines set by the risk management committee,

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of movements
in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item 15 the
effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,

a) Cuorrency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the
currencies in which sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated. The currencies in which
these transactions are primarily denominated are US Dollars, Euro and Mauritian Rupee.

The Group does nat have any policy to hedge against foreign currency exposure, In respect of
other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group's policy is to
ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019:

2 in Lacs
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Bank Balances 2.907.71 4,121.24
Trade Receivables 3,290.68 3,543,04 |
Other Current Assets 2,490.60 1.564.02
Net Assets / (Liabilities) 8,688.90 9.228.30
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32.

33.

For the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate between the MUR and respective currencies has affected the
Group's incremental profit before tax as per below:

2 in Lacs
K Change in currency Effect on profit
exchange rate before tax
31 March 2020 +5% / (+5%) 277.59/(277.59)
31 March 2019 +5% / (-5%) 229.437(229.41)

Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Group has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

Foreign Currency
Particulars Y Iag Amt in Lacs Foreign
31 March 2020 31 March 31 March | 31 March Currency
2019 2020 2019
Amount Receivable 5,551.86 4,588.57 67.00 59.08 EURO

b) Imterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure 10 the risk of changes in market
interest rates is Nil as there are no borrowings in the Group.

¢) Price risk
Group does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments by group,

Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - “Leases™:

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease, These are generally cancellable and
ranges from 11 months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions imposed by lease
arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents, The lease payments of ¥ 0.80
Lacs {Previous Year ¥ 46.29 Lacs) are recognisad in Statement of Profit and Loss under “Rent” under
Note 21,

Transition

Effective April 1,2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applicd the standard 10 all lease
contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative
adjustment to retained eamings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded
the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the generally accepted interest
rate and the right of use asset al it carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted interest rate at the date of
initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included
as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of 2128.70
Lacs and a lease liability of 2128.70 Lacs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting o
¥Nil Lacs was debited 1o retained earnings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on
the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase
in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on
account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
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Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

Applied the exemption not fo recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application.

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset a1 the date of initial
application,

Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases,
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under
Ind AS 17.

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 disclosed
under Note 21 of the 2019 Annual Report and the value of the lease liability as of April 1, 2019 is
primarily on account of inclusion of extznsion and termination options reasonably cerain to be
exercised, in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the lease
liabilities to the present value under Ind AS 116,

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 7%.

The future minimum lease payments and pavment profile of non-cancellable operating leases are as

under: Tin Lacs

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Not later than one vear 33.46 46.87
Later than one year but not later than five years 200.51 217.83
Less than five years Nil Nil

Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Group.

Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relationships:

Category I - Holding Company
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)

Category 11 - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Mr. Vinayak Muzumdar Director (APML)

Mr. Suttian Deerpaul Director (APML)

& Relatives of Key Management Personnel

B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: in Lacs

Sr.

Particulars Category 31 March | 31 March

No. 2020 2019

Purchase of Goods:

Ajanta Pharma Ltd,, India | 10,510.40 7.597.54

Key Management Compensation:

Short Term Emplovee Benefits

Vinayak Muzumdar & Suttian Deerpaul 1l 75.74 76.51

Dividend Paid te Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 1 8.404.90 6,097 .55




Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

36.

3.

38,

C) Amount ovistanding as on 31 March 2020

2 in Lacs

Sr. No. | Particulars

Category

31 March 2020

31 March 2019 |

1. Advance Receivable :

Ajanta Pharma Lid., India 1 2.261.18
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility
The particulars of CSR expenditure are as follows: YinLacs
Sr. No. | Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
a. Construction/ acquisition of asset Nil Nil
b. On purposes other than (a) above 9.17 28.19
Remuneration to Auditors : ?in Lacs
Particulars 31 March 2020 3 March 2009
Audit Fees 11.49 10.53
For Certification and Other Matters 1.00 1.00 |

The Group has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals™.

In terms of our report attached

FOR G R MOD! & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(PARTNER.]
M NO. 107574

UDIN : 201075T4AAAABAL 46

Mumbai, 8 May 2020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

—Lﬁlwﬁ‘\ﬂ

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Director
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC,

Report on the Standalone Financial Statemenis

The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. are being audited under the local laws
of the country by the statutory auditor for the period 1st Jan 2019 to 31st December 2019, The
company follows the period Ist April 2019 1o 31st March 2020, In order to consolidate the
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. with that of the company. we have been
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. for the period Ist April 2019 10 315t March 2020 under the
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. (“the Company™) comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet
as at 31st March 2020, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone Ind AS financial
statements”) prepared in accordance with group accounting policies followed by Ajanta Pharma
Lid. These Standalone financial statements have been prepared solely to enable Ajanta to
prepare its consohidated financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given (o us,
the aforesaid standalone financial stalements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and
profitloss, changes in equityand its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethicy
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant o our audit of the financial starements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in




accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thercon,
and we do not provide a separale opinion on these matters.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance.
(changes in eguity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.




{(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounis)
Rules, 2014.

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1st March, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March,
2020 from being appointed as a dinector in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A"

(g) With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

il, The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts mcluding derivative conltracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses: and

1ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, o the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FORG R MODI & CO

(PARTNER.)
M NO. 107574

Mumbai

Bth May 2020
UDIN NO 2010757 4AAAABB1559



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Repori

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
PHILIPPINES INC. (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate intemal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extznt applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obfain reasonable

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemmal financial controls system over financial

reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contro! over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extenal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemnal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
rcasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of inernal financial controls over financial reporting.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections ol any
evaluation of the intemal financial controls ever financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deleriorate.

Opinion

[npuur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FORG RMODI & CO

(PARTNER.)
M NO. 107574

Mumbai
8th May 2020
UDIM HOD 2010757 4AAAABB1559



Ajanta Pharma l"hll‘FppInn Inc,
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 = .
- 1 Ei-ﬂﬂ-h’l 31-Mar-1%
— Note  Rs,inLacs | Rs. inlacs
Assety '
| Non-current assets —= e ===
Property, plant and equipment 7 521,42 586,01
| Other intangibie assets 1 7 = 447 0.66
RIght to use assets 7 nar]|
F"Inanclnt ety
Other financial assets ] 1.77 1.57
‘Deferred tax assets (net) 9 17.40 | 13.97
Total non-current assets 568,45 | 602,22
Current assets
inventories 10 3,136.10 1,029,19
Financial assets h _ - i ]
~ Trade receivables 1M 661214 490529
 Cash and cash equivalents o 12 4,393.85 |  maas
Other current assets 13 269.40 92.99
Total current assets 14,411.48 B 74192
Total assets 14 979 94 9 344 14
Equity and Liabilities - o - - I
Equity R
Equity share capital 14 138.40 1318.40
Dther Equity o 15 B,986.08 B,452.61
Total Equity 9,124.48 £,591.01
Liabilities | 0
Hon current Iilh'illtjn | |
" Financial hnhilmu |
" Borrowings 16 74.25 | 6608
" Lease Uabilly T - 17 16.62 ]
Total non-current liabllities | 100.87 | 66.08
Current liabilities | [
F’mnclal Tiabilities 1|
Trade payables 18 4.180.66 | 1,640.99
" Gther financial llabilities = 19 21011 l 196,68
“Other current labilities - 0 1,183.85 |  B849.18
Total current labilities 5,754.61 1,687.05
Total equity and labilities 14,979.96 9.344.14
= — = = -J
Significant accounting policies | |
[ The note referred t to above form part of an Consolidated financial statement - .
as per_ut;;um'L ul‘ even date attached || B
In terms of our report attached - I ————
T FORGRMODIACO For and on behalf of Board of Directors
= o - | of Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
[rmnﬂ I =] - -
M NG, 107574 e ‘Rl_jﬂihTﬁ‘r-‘lﬂ'll 1
| Director il
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l].lrru Pharma Phllippln-ﬂ Inc
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2020

T Mar30 | 31 Mar1d
B — Note Rs.inLacs | Rs. in Lacs
Income |
 Revenue from operations 2 20.694.21 | 16,177.29
Other income 2 96.38 | 27.74
Total income 20,790.58 | 16,205.03
Expenses = —}
Cost of materials consumed . :
Purchase of stock-in-trade 27 10,735.81 9,171.57
 Changes in inventories of finished goods/ work-in-progress/ stock-i-trade 4 25310 (622.96)
Employee benefits expenses 5 1Inaa 1,226.28
| Finance costs o o . 3367 24.61
| Depreciation & amortisation expense - 27 143,80 120.21
* Other expenses B 78 3,314.55 2,662.17
Total expenses 15,873,216 | 12,581.98
Profit before tax 491732 |  3,623.06
 Taxexpense - | [
Current tax o N | 1.560.64 | 1,082 58
Deffered tax o I 050 | 1.96
Profit for the year I 3,356.18 |  2,538,52
Other comprehensive income / (loss) |
'mmﬁﬁilummnﬂedwmmmwmwm == ]
‘Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 90421 8.7
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss &=} :
Met other comprehensive income / (loss) to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 904.21 | 168.79
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax | 904.21 | 268.79
Total comprehensive Income / (loss) for the year 4,260.39 | 1,807.30
Earning Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) (Face Yalue PHP100/-) 0 167,81 | 126.93

Signi'rh:am. ac:mtlng pul.ll:i:s

The note referred to above form part of an Euruntidar.ed lidated financial st.ur.ﬂrmt

“As per m.lr-repart of even d; even date attached
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]
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FRN

L mbD1
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

e

M ND. 107574

Mumbal, B May, 2020
UDIN NO 2010757 4AAAABB1559

|- Nichuish M. Agiwel |

Director
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[Ajanta Pharma Phiippines Ine. |
mm-dmn-hm,m-ﬂammm- i 7 - | (¥ in Lacs)
| I = 3 March 2nie 31 March 2019 |
|
[x S b A I
| Profibefor | w1 323,06 |
T ! — i | PR——
Drprycistion wd m o e im 12010
| Fewceom || — wer Hs1
Uezalised forcegn enchange differeoce o 3| 16479
= Ohperating cuch flrw befare working capital changes | 597980 | | 036,866
= Change i working capetal | _ |
Decrense / (increase ) in wbe recenvable I 11708 "-94 77427
Bmuu:twm]nmhwmm (R 1.0
|| Decrease/ imerease) in other coent musen | e ) WEaT
T | 6 T ¥ i | — tme (22 e
Increase / (Seciae) in other curtend uabalties MR T
Increase | [ decreasc | o wadke payables | 7190 1403 1
||| Cushgemerated from sperations T L0y ss
Net incorme 1y pasd [ 11561 14) 11084 54
& mThﬂmrumrnmm 1 — ssum 131908
B | Cash Mow from imvesting setivities ] — L
Caprtal expersdutre on property, plant and equipmare mhiu-:-_tlT il I.I:‘i‘!lli (124 32
Capeal expenditone on rght b s et | {38 08} -
Progeeds from sale of fiaed usets = Il o
Net cush used in investing activitien I ~ (eRwey (12416]
| tummiu-lduunu = |
Rmmﬂd’m:m;'-h:nw B 7 .5
Repayment of leawe linblty | mctudsng uilereel therpor ) 1562 .
Ieerent paid = —my ! 12481
Dividend pasd ey 11544 57
Nnnrn-uhmlnmquwu | R . 11,700.69)
HTﬂJtﬁTlhtﬂﬂNMI . 1308.80)
|
Cash snd cash pqurvalemy as ot the begionng of the yewr | | T 102568
ot and cauh evalents wm ot the el of e yoor 1 [N 71438
Frygures in trachets midscates maflow

N ¢

| The shene Cash Flow Stabement has leen pregured under Tndmeet Method' as set ot i Ascoenang Standard 7 (lod A% - T) "Seabeenent of Cusd Flow”
|ander Secnon 133 of the Companses Act 2013

1. Cab comprives canb on hasd, cuvesit accoames and deponms it banks Cath squrvaboris are sholr-torm bal {mulh an otginal ty ol thiee
eonths o lens froen the date of soqueistion |
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

3.

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Philippines and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Lid., India. The address of its
registered office is located at Unit 710, AXA Life Bldg., 1286, Sen. Gil Puyat Ave,, Makati City,
Philippines,

Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities.

The Financial Statement for the Company were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 8 May, 2020.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statement of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
{hereinafter referred to as the *Ind AS’) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India,

The financial statements have been preparzd on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,
which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount wherever applicable,

Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional currency of the Company is Philippine Peso (Php). The financial statement is prepared &
presented in Indian Rupees (INR) as it is the functional currency of the Holding Company.

Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest
lacs.

Current versus Non-Current classification

The assets and liabilities in the balance shect are presented based on current/non-current
classification.

An asset is current when it is:

o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

» [Expected to be realised within twelve months afler the reporting peried, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for af
least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when it is:

» Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

o Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at Jeast twelve months
after the reporting period.



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

6.1

6.2

All other liabilities are treated as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

Operating Cyele

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are initially measured at cost and are presented in the financial
statements at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment
in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing pant of the property, plant and equipment at the
time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day
servicing.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Cost also includes any related asset retirement obligation (ARO) and interest
incurred during the construction period on funds borrowed 1o finance the construction of the
projects. Expenditures incurred after the fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to deferred development cost in the
period the cost are incurred. Major repairs are capitalized as pant of property and equipment only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company
and the cost of the items can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Condominium Units 20 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings 2 vears
Office Equipments 2 years
Computers 2 years
Maotor Vehicles 5 years

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Fully
depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or
when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the retirement and disposal of an item of property and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.

Intangible Assels

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and are subsequently measured al cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss. These are amortized over
estimated useful life using the straight line method. If there is an indication that there has been a



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

6.3

significamt change in amortization rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset, the
amortization is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations.

Intangible assets are derecognized when these assets are disposed of or when no future economic
benefits are expected from these assets,

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
linbility or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Asseis
Classification

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, firancial assets are classified in two broad categories!

» Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)

» Financial assets at amortised cost

When assets are measured at fair value, pains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.¢. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH)).

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (net of any write down for impairment, ifany)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Assels measured at Fair Valoe through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI™)
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is 10 hold assets for both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movemenis are recognized
in the other comprehensive income.

Financial Assels measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL™)

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.
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Investment in Equity Instrumenis

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equily
instruments are classified as FVTOCL. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss,

Investment in Debt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured al amortised cost or at FVTOCL Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially 2t fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of direetly attributable transaction costs,

Financial liabilities include trade and other pavables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial irstruments,

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest-hearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Stmtement of Profit and Loss,

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts 1o mitigale
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value, Derivatives are carried as financial ascets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Inventories

Finished products including traded poods are valued at lower of cost (on moving weighted average
basis) and net realisable value, The cost of Inventories have been computed 1o include all eost of
purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal
capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Slow and non-moving, obsolesces, defective inventory are fully provided for and valued a1 net
realisable value. Goods in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet,

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash al bank including fixed
deposit/highly liquid investments with originzl maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 10 an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose
of statement of cash flow.

Cash Flow Statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby net profit before 1ax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchangs difference either on settlement or on restatement is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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The Company recognises revenue (o depict the transfer of promised goods or services (o customers.
In accordance with Ind-AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the Company recognises
revenue by applving the following five steps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

The Company applies the revenue recognition model to each contract with a customer once it is
probable the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled. Contracts for this
purpose may be written, verbal or implied by customary business practices, but must be
enforceable and have commercial substance. In evaluating whether collection is probable, the
Company considers only the customer’s ability and intention to pay the consideration when due.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Once the contract has been identified, the Company evaluates the terms and customary business
practices to identify which promised goods or services should be accounted for as separale
performance obligations. The key determinant for identifying a separate performance obligation
is whether a good or service, or a bundle, is distinct. A good or service is distinct if the customer
can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other readily available
resources and the good or service is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract,
The Company treats each distinct good or service as a separate performance obligation.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled and
includes:

-An estimate of any variable consideration determined using either a probability-weighted
expected value or the most likely amount, whichever better predicts the amount of consideration
to which the Company will be entitied

-The effect of the time value of money, if there is a financing component that is significant 1o
the contract

-The fair value of any non-cash consideration
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

The Company usually allocates transaction price 1o each separate performance obligation on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. When determining siand-alone selling prices, the
Company uses observable information, if it is available. If stand-alone selling prices are not
directly observable, the Company estimates such prices based on reasonably available
information, e.g., adjusted market assessment approach or an expected cost plus a margin
approach. Only when the stand-alone selling price of a good or service is highly variable or
uncertain, the Company use residual approach for allocation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The Company determines whether it satisfies performance obligation by transferring control of a
promised good or service over time or at a point in time to the customer. A performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which
case, it is satisfied over time:
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-The customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs

=The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced

The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised, when all significant risks and rewards are transferred
to the buyer, as per the terms of contracts and no significant uncertainty exists regarding amount
of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of goods, it is probable that the economic benefit
will flow to the Company, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated
reliably, there is neither continuing management involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. The Company is principal in all of its revenue arrangements, since it is the primary obligor
in all of the revenue arrangements, as it has pricing latitude and is exposed to inventory and credit
risks.

Provisions for chargeback, rebates and discounts are estimated and provided for in the year of sales
and recorded as reduction of revenue.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amount disclosed
as revenue are inclusive of excise duty, excluding Goods and Services tax (GST), sales tax or value
added taxes or service taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government, and net of amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

When the financing element is significant, the Company adjusts the transaction price for the time
value of money. The objective when adjusting the consideration for a significant financing
component is to recognise revenue at the cash selling price.

Revenue from sale of technology / know how (rights, licences and other intangibles) are recognised
when performance obligation is completed as per the terms of the agreement. Incomes from services
are recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Insurance and other claims are recognised as
a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes
are accounted to the extent considered receivable.

Dividend income is recognised when the Entity’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Emplovee Benefits

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a hability net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given
by the Company 1o its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short-
term compensated absences, bonuses and other non-monetary benefits.

Post-Employment Benefits - The Company does not have a formal retirement benefit plan.
However, the Company is subject to the provision of Republic Act No. 7641 (known as the
Retirement Law). This requires that in the absence of a retirement plan of agreement providing for
retirement benefits of employees in the private sector, an employee upon reaching the age of 60
years or more, but not beyond 65 years, who has served for at least five (5) years in a private
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company, may retire and shall be entitled to retirement pay. No actuarial compulation was made
considering that there are no more than ten (10) employees who had served at least five years and
the turnover of emplovees is high,

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
{including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. Those are included in
the salaries and wages account and are recognized when availed of by the employees.

Retirement and Other Long-term Benefits

Retirement and other long-term benefits costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit
credit method. This method reflects services rendered by employees up 1o the date of valuation and
incorporates assumplions concerning employees’ projected salaries. The calculation of defined
benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in the future
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given
to any applicable minimum funding requirements,

Re-measurements of the net retirement and other long-term employee benefits liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in OCL The Company
determines the nel interest expense to measure the net retirement benefit liability (asset) on at the
beginning of the annual period 1o the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Nel interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in profit or loss,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates 10 past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or
loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

The net retirement and other long-term benefits liability recognized by the Company is the aggregate
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of
which the obligations are to be settled directly. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest rates of
government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related retirement and
other long-term benefits liability,

Share-based compensation
Company has no share based compensation plan.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and other bank charges. Borrowing cosis
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes o
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur.

Lease

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of & contract. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the
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use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of

the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the
asser.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU™)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the options 1o extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and |ease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable, For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.c. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the valuc-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of these from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU} 10
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost al the present value of the future lease
payments, The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all
lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retraspective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the
generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019,

Omn transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Righllof Use' asset of
236.43 Lacs and a lease liability of 38.00 Lacs, The cumulative effect of applying the standard,
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amounting to 21.57 Lacs was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is
insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and eamings per share. Ind AS 116 will
result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from
financing activities on account of lease payments,

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolic of leases of similar assets in similar économic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

¢, Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applicd the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases,
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17,

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17
disclosed under Note 28 of the 2019 Annual Report and the value of the lease liability as of April 1,
2019 is primarily on account of inclusion of extension and lermination options reasonably certain to
be exercised, in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the
lease liabilities 1o the present value under Ind AS 116,

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 6%,

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value, Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period.
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for cach

period presented.
Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the year
calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the lability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements
However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor 1axable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income 1ax is determined
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using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period and
are expected to apply in the period when the related deferred income tax assel is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is setiled. Deferred 1ax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Dividends to Shareholders

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the sharcholders. Any imerim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

General

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognized when: (a) the Company has a present obligation
{legal or constructive) as a result of a past aven; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (¢} a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and those risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as Finance Cost. When some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is
expected 1o be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only
when, it is virtually certain that reimbursemem will be received if the entity seftles the obligation.
The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate assel. The amoumt recognized for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are reviewed at cach
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

« A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation;

» A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;

» A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements,

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises in 4
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs 10
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of l!'h&l
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks :»‘:peciﬁ':
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added 1o or deducted from the cost of the asset.
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Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

* Derivative financial instruments are measured ai fair value received from Bank.
o Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV),
¢ Emplovee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants ot the measurement date,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 10 another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of uncbservable inpuls.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

s Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

s Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above

Recent accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management (0 make Judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
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uncertainty sbout these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods.

(a)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

(e)

(N

Arrangement containing lease

At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease,
Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases.

Multiple element contracts with vendors

The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent of the
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are
accounted for based on their relative fair values 1o the overall consideration, The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the
Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement.

Property, Plant and equipment

Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of 1angible assets is based on the life
of useful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets,
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds, The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-
employment benefit obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred 1ax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Managemen! judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews a1 each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred 1ax essets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment 1o the amounts reported in the financial
statements.
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(h)

i)

(k)

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising hetween the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable emtity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is reguired to determine the amoum of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of rescurces at a future date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included ir other provisions,

Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible cutflow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/flitigations against the Company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any imerest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts, Individual trade receivables are
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
lifie of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default
and expected loss rates, Judgement in making these assumption and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery,

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (*CGU")
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
madel, In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in
respect of highly uncertain matiers, including management’s expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved.
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29.

31.

Capital Management

Company's policy is 1o maintain a strong capial base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on
capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity sharcholders, The board of directors secks to maintain
a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company's target is to achi¢ve a returm on
capital above 30%: in 2019-20 the return was 53% and in 2018-19 the return was 33%.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities. comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and short term invesiments, Adjusted
equity comprises all componems of equity.

Company’s policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March

2020 was as follows. Tin Lacs

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Debt (Debt + Current Liabilities) 5.754.61 2,687.05
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 4,393.85 T14.25
Net Debt A 1.360.76 1,972.80
Equity B 9,124.48 6,591.01
Net Debt to Equity ratio A/B 015 0.30

Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used 1o calculate Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS (2 A 3.356.18 2.538.52
in Lacs)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (2 in Lacs) B Nil Nil
Profit atributable to Equity shareholders for computing | C=A-B 3,356,18 2,538.52
Diluted EPS (¥ in Lacs)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding - B} 20,00,000 20,00,000
for Basic EPS

Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- “Number of E Nil Nil
Equity Shares

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted | F=D+E 20,00,000 20,00,000
EPS

Face Value per Equitv Share (Php) 100 100
Basic Earnings Per Share (¥) AD 167.81 126.93
Diluted Earnings Per Shares (¥) C/F 167.81 126.93

Employee Benefits

Asrequired by Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits', the Company offers its employees: Short-term employee
benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other government contributions which are due
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. The
total consideration paid in 2019-20 was 2 1,372.24 Lacs (Previous Year 2 1,226.28 Lacs).

Retirement plan - The Company did not yet set up a retirement plan since it does not have more than
ten (10) employees who had served at least five years. Retirement expenses are recognized upon actual
availment of qualified employees which will be determined by the Company based on the actual number
of years of service in compliance with RA No. 7641. No retirement cosis were recognized
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Financial Instrument — fair values and risk management

32.

Fair value measurements

2 in Lacs

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Financial Instrumenis by category FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised |
Cost Cost
Financial Assefs
Trade Receivables - 6,612.14 - 4,905,29
Other Non-Current Financial Assets - 1.77 - 1.57
Cash and cash equivalents - 4,393.85 = 714,25
Total Financial Assets - 11,007.76 - 5.621.12
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 74.25 66.08
Other Current Financial Liabilities - 1,393.95 - 1.046.06
Trade Payables - 4.360.66 - | |.640,09
Total Financial Liabilities - 5,828.86 - | 1,753.13
Fair Value Hierarchy 2in Lacs

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Financial asseis and liabilities measured at Level Level
fair value

1 1] 11 1 1] (111
Financial assets
Non recurring fair value measurement
Trade Receivables - -| 661214 . 4.905.29
Other Mon-Current Financial Assets - - o - - 1.57
Cash and cash equivalents - - | 4,393.85 - 714,25
Total Financial Assets - - | 11,007.76 - - 5,621.12
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 74.25 - - 66.08
Other Current Financial Liabilities - - 1,393.95 - 1.046.06
Trade Payables - - 4,360.66 - - | 1.640.99
Total Financial Liabilities - - | 5,828.86 - -| 2,753.13

Level | = The hierarchy in level 1 includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV,

Leével 2 — The fair value of financial instruments that are nol traded in an active market (like forward
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required 1o fair value as

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument

is in¢luded in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, etc. included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management

Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:

o Credit risk
= Liguidity risk
o Market risk
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Risk management framework

Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee.

Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it. 10 set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence 1o limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. Company, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees urderstand their roles and obligations,

Company's Audit commitiee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk managemem controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

i Credit risk
Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with its
approved customers. The maximum exposure (o credit on these transactions is equal 1o the carrying
amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject 1o stringent financial, credit and legal
verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis 1o
ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Summary of the Company's exposure 10 credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers

is as follows: Tin Lacs

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Mot past due but impaired - -

Mot past due not impaired - =

Past due not impaired 6.612,14 4.905.29

- 1-180 davs 6,499.65 4.905.29

- 181-365 days 112,99 -

- more than 365 days =

Past due impaired -

- 1-180 days -

- 181-365 days B

- more than 365 days -

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash
in banks and receivables (except for advances to suppliers), the Company’s exposure to credit risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with
financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors. The Company’s
receivables is minimal since ne default payments were made by the counterparties. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.

il Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all
limes maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash managemeni system.
Presently the Company has existing long-term loans that fund capital expenditures. Working capital
requirements are adequately addressed by internally generated funds. Trade receivables are kept
within manageable levels.
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33.

i,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices — will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is 10 manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial
instruments. Company’s activities expose il 1o a variety of financial risks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. All transactions are carried oul within
the guidelines set by the risk management committee.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of movements
in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the
effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,

a) Currency risk
The Company’s foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Philippine peso
against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and labilities,

The Company’s transactional currency exposures arise from its inventories which is 100%
purchases from Holding Company in US dollar. In addition, 13% as at 31 March 2020 and 13%
as at 31 March 2019 of the Company’s debt are denominated in US dollar. The Company
periodically reviews the trend of the foreign exchange rates and, as a practical move, increases
its US dollar denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine peso is depreciating or
decreases its 1S dollar denominated time deposils in times when the Philippine peso is

appreciating.
The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019:

¥ in Lacs
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Financial Assets
Trade Payables (4.360.66) (1,640.99)
Borrowings & Other Financial Liabilities (36.97) (34.16)
Net Assets / (Liabilities) (4,397.63) (1,675.15)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate between the PHP and respective currencies has affected the

Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the vear, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

Company’s incremental profit before tax as per below: ?in Lacs
Year Change in currency exchange rate Effect on profit before tax |
31 March 2020 +5% / (-5%) 219.88/ (219.88) |
31 March 2019 +5% / (-5%) 83.76 /(83.76) |

Foreign Currency 5
Particulars Cin e At in Lacs C'::‘:gﬁ:‘j
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
AL 4,397.63 1,675.15 58.56 24.28 USD
Payable
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b} Interest rate risk
The Company's exposure 1o changes in interest rates relates primarily 10 the Company's long-
term debt obligations. Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to fair value interest rate risk.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates, with all other variable held constant, of the Company’s profit before income tax.
The estimates are based on the cutstanding inerest bearing liabilities of the Company with

floating interest rate as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, 2 in Lacs
Year Change in interest rate Effect on profit before tax
31 March 2020 +1% / (-1%) 284 /(2.84)
31 March 2019 +1% / (-1%) 2.63 /(2.63)
¢) Price risk

Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments.

34.  Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - “Leases™:

The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease is for a period of one year and
renewable every year upon mutual consent of the parties. There are no contingent rents. The lease
payments of 2 28,75 Lacs (Previous Year ¥ 31,48 Lacs) are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
under “Rent™ under Note 28.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease
contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative
adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initinl application. Consequently, the Company recorded
the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the generally accepted interest
rate and the right of use assel at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted interest rate at the date of
initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included
as part of our Annual Report for vear ended March 31, 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use’ asset of 236.43
Lacs and a lease lability of 238.00 Lacs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting 1o
21.57 Lacs was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on
the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase
in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on
account of lease paymenis.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate 1o a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with Jess than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application.

¢.  Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.

d. Applied the practical expedient 1o grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only 1o contracts that were previously identified as leases under
Ind AS 17.

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 disclosed
under Note 28 of the 2019 Annual Report and the value of the lease liability as of April 1, 2019 is
primarily on account of inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain to be
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exercised. in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the lease
liabilities to the present value under Ind AS 116,

35.

36.

37,

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 6%.

The Company leases transportation equipment under a number of finance lease agreements for a term of
5 years. Transportation equipment under finance lease arrangements, shown as part of “Property, Plant
and Equipment” account in the statememts of financial position. The aggregate future minimum

payments under finance leases are as under; 2in Lacs
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Not later than one vear 210.11 196,68
Later than one year but not later than five years T4.25 6,08
Less than five years Nil Nil
Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company.
Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:
A) Relationships:
Category 1- Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India {Holding Company)
Category 11 - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Sam Gioskos Director (APPI)
& Relatives of Key Management Personnel
B) Following transactions were carried oul with related parties: ¥in Laes
Sr. No. | Particulars Category 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1. Purchase of Goods:
Ajanta Pharma Lid., India | 10,755.81 0,171.57
2 Key Managemen! Compensation:
Short Term Employee Benelits
Sam Gioskos il 69,65 63.83
X Dividend Paid to Ajanta Pharma Ltd., i 1,725.36 1.644.57

India
C) Amounl outstanding as on 31 March 2020 Tin Lacs
Sr. No. | Particulars Category 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

L Trade Payable ;

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India i 4,360.66 1.640.99
Remuneration to Auditors : Zin Lacs
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Audit Fees 3.56 3.27
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38.  The Company has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals™.

In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of Board of

Directors of
FORG R MODI & CO Ajanta Pharma Philippines
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Inc.
[PARTNER.) Rajesh M. Agrawal
M NO. 107574 Director

Mumbai, 8 May 2020

UDIN NO 20107574AAAABB|559
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Lid.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. are being audited under the local laws of
the country by the statutory auditor for the period 1st Jan 2019 1o 31st December 2019. The
company follows the period 1st April 2019 to 3]st March 2020, In order to consolidate the
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. With that of the company. we have been
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. for the period Ist April 2019 o 31st March 2020 under the
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. (“the Company™) comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at
31st March 2020, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, for the vear then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred 1o as “the
standalone Ind AS financial statements™) prepared in accordance with group accounting policies
followed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Standalone financial statements have been prepared
solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its linancial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opmion.




Key Audit Matiers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these maiters,

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the essets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application ol appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and mamtenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant io the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability lo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Repaort on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.




(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

{¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss. and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1st March, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A",

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations 2iven to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foresecable
losses: and

iti. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR G R MODI & CO

et
[PARTNER )
M NO. 107574

Mumbai
8th May 2020
UDIN NO. 20107574AAAABCTS596




Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Scction 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
NIGERIA LTD.(*the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the ¢ssential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Contro!s over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate intemal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of th: accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ol records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary fo permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance wil' generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthor zed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intzmal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
cvaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Inpuu: opinion, the Company has, in all mate-ial respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR G R MODI & CO

[PARTNER.)
M NO. 107574

{ Mumbai

; 8th May 2020
' UDIN NO. 20107574AAAABCTS596




[ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd,
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Hote Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Assets
Hon-current assets — |
‘Property, plant and equipment - | % 71.28
Right to use assels 7 8.38
Taotal non-current assets B1.65
Current assets |
Inventories T B 5.0
Financial assets |
Trade recetvables [] | 350,00
Cash and cash equivalents 10 6.29 | 88.11
Other current assets 1 ani| T 9.5%
Total current assets 19.03 448,25
Total assets 100.69 448.15
Equity and Liabilities
Equity ~ s
Equity share capital 12 136.70 136.70
Other Equity - I (84.21) 21.77)
Total equity 52.49 114,93
Liabilities
Hon current llabilities
Lease liability o 14 9.44
Current llabilities
Financial Habilities
Trade payables o = s | 4| 19055
Dther current liabilities D 18 19.71 142.77
Total current Habilities 38.76 13332
- Total Equity and Liabilities 1m£- 448,15
Significant accounting polickes =
The note referred to above form part of an Corsolidated financial statement =
As per our report of even date attached
In terms of our report attached
= i | s FOR G R MODI & CO FM.nthlhlIfnflnrdufDlru‘tm
COOUNTANTS of Ajanta Pharma MNigeria Ltd,
GauraN——
[PARTNER. AL g e——
M NO, 107572 = Gaurang Shah
= Director |

Mumbal, 8 May, 2020

Mumbal, 8 May, 2020

UDIN NO. 20107574AAAABCT 598

f




Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd,
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2020
Y-Mar-20 | 31-Mar-19
Mote Rs, o Lacs | A in Lacs
Income
Revenue from operations S 17 167,69 339.19
Other income . i
Total income 167.89 3139.1%
Expenses
Tml:_uf materials consumed - .
Purchase of stock-in-trade 18 114.90 171,44
Changes in inventories of finished goods/ work-in-progress/stock- in-trade 19 (7.94) ;
Employee benefits expenses 20 4.8 2.95
Finance costs h 1 D
Depreciation & amortisation cxpense 11 T :
Other expenses pa 111.80 108.97
Total expenses 157.00 383.37
Profit before tax B9.11) (44.18)
" Tax experse o o
Current tax S (26.59) 012.54)
Delfered tax . .
Profit for the year 162.12) {31.65)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) | .
‘items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or lo:s I
| Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations _0e4| (15.72)
Incame tax relating to ttems that will be reclassified ta profit or loss = :
Met other comprehensive income / (loss) to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 0.64 115.72)
Dther comprehenstve income ¢ (loss) for the year, net of tax 0,64 (15.72)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (61.48) (47.37)
e e e o e e *
‘Earning Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) (Face Value NN 1/-) {in Rs.) 25 {0.10) {0.05)
Significant accounting policies P
The nate referred to above form part of an Consolidated finarcial statement
A5 per our report of even date attached
l -
In terms of our report attached - [ _
; FOR G R MODI & CO For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ajanta Pharma Migeria Lid,
—— GaufanE=—l
(PARTNER.| g—Shfh e
M ND, 107574 Gaurang Shah 1
Director | |
. Mumbal, 8 May, 2020 |
"UDIN NO. 20107574AAAABCT596 |




Mibe |

Ajents Pharms Nigeria Lid. | [
Statement of Cavh Bow for the year eoded 31 March 2020 (¥ in Lacs)
31 March 2020 3 Murch 2118
e —— .
Profit before tax [T 441X
Adjustimeni for
Deprecisnon & amomsstion eapomee LT
Inigrent expee | I [ -
LUnsealisgd foaeipn exchange dillerence o6l iH™
perating profit before working capital changes {57.04) 59,50
Charges in woeking capital |
Decreass | {imcrrand ) in trade recevvable — % 03 T 9T
Decrense | | mcrenss ) 1s othes Current assts i " I LEEY
Diecaease | {imcremic} in imvemiones (LAY *
Ircieane  {decresss) m other curremt leshilities 1020 1) (REY 1K
Increase * {decreas ) m trade payables [TEELT L (42129
Cuah grnerawd lrom speranon: LAany e
et incoene 1as paid | 695 1284
Netcath Now gonerated from apern ting activaties ny FECTXER
| l |
Cash Mare Trom rvesting activitie
Purchase of fved maets-imeluding csangible et & cuip (0 -
(Cmptal expenditire on right 1o wse wet (1298 =
et el ward i imvestag acrn ifies (11208} -
]
L‘-l!iln h-l-;uqudiﬁu
e pad | I — 11 1K) .
Repayment of lesse Liabiligy (inchiding interest thereon) 944 -
et cush used in financing sctite L83 -
| ]
Net increase | [decresse) in cxsh mnd cash equivabmin (RLU2) (39901
|
EﬂtL:-lq-uhn -l]dltlrml-linl"hm i Ay
Cash srad conh oquvalents as ot the end of the yoar IV &3]

Frgures i heackets maboates ootflow

Sigreficant sccomiting pobices
The e rederved fo above Sorm part of @ Coosodidsted Francon) datement
Ay per i repont of even date anached

Ia e of sur repart snsched

FOM G R AMODI & CD
CHARTINED ACCOUNTANTS

Mumbai, § May, 1030
UDIN NO, 18107574 AAABCTS%

1 The above Cash Flow Stasement baa been prepared under Tadsmect Method” us set ot i Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS - 71 “Sestement of Cash Flow®
ey Section 111 of e Commpanies At 2011
2 Cush compries oo on hand, cuttont scomumts sl depouits with banks Cach eque-abénts are sholet-term balances (with an ol maursty of three

gha o lesi froin the date of scquisition)

For and win beball of Board of Dieecters of
Ajanis Pharma Nigeria Lid.

Gauran=—=

g Shah ===

Csurang Shakh
hrecine
Mamibai, § My, 2600




e LT ) e - ; — — =
Hatament of Charges 14 Equity for the yoer aded S s 005 | =1 == ;
i
A Eguity Uhare Caghtal ! £ in Lascs,
Balarca i 80§ Aprsl 3019)  Changes b wasity share | Balance m o 17 Sarch
o
- — 4 — .Ir';l - — —_— . —_— —
| Akl - .1 —= i |
[utncribee & Faitl s 1470 = —
b . S
Fartqulan Caphtal | Securttes | Geeeral | Shere Baaed  Rewsned | Fareps Dt M of Total Mo | Tatal Lty
Brdemptian | Promium | Bessrer Pagproant Emninp | Currency sther Cartraliirg
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| Emarvr ngnme |
s ut 1 Apasl 070 1 ] [ 1230 0 | XL L
[Pt ¥ the periad | | - [N | LR [TREET
| e ormior ety Ve | | [CETY » (%] LT
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ot e Do 1 C i o s B : v
4t 31 Mareh 3017 - = (3289} (19431 doaa | - '1':'-[1";{ - & (R
3 i [T § (5] [TERET
AP comprrrural o InCame 1 - Gl | [ 0.b4
BUAl tomgraeniive Income K L (81 4mj] [b1 48|
[Trmnchi b2 Brtnaed Larmiongy } LY ol | * R 1.9}
AL T March J030 + | [EEXT) PR 3113 | - i 21| (310
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Litd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

l.

3.

5.

Corporate Information

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. is a limited hiability company incorporated and domiciled in Nigeria and
is 8 wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Lid., India. The address of its registered office is
located at Block 6, House 6b, Howson Wright Estate, Oregun Road, Ojola, Lagos, Nigeria.

The Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities.

The Financial Statement for the Company were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 8 May, 2020,

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statement of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards
(hercinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS') read "vith Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India,

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,
which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount wherever applicable.

Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional currency of the Company is Nigerian Niara (NN). The financial statement is prepared &
presented in Indian Rupees (INR) as it is the functional currency of the Holding Company.

Rounding of Amounts

All amoums disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest
lacs,

Current versus non-current classification:

The assets and labilities in the balance sheet arc presented based on current/non-current
classification.

An assel is current when it is:

* Expected 10 be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

*  Cash or cash equivalent unless resiricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A liability is current when it is:

»  Expected to be settled in normal operating cyele, or

*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

* Dueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period,
All other liabilities are treated as Non-Current.



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

6.1

6.2

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

Operating Cvele

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current,

Significant Accounting Policies
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable (o the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assels carrying amount or recognisec as o separale asset as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write of the cost of assets, 1o their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful Life
Motor Vehicles 4 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of
reporting period. Where the carrving amount of an asset is greater than ils estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately 10 its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Insiruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity

Financial Assets

Classification

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual c2sh flows characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assels are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset,

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

* Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FYTOCD
» Financial assets at amortised cost



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020
When assets are measured a1 fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)).

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the assel
give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCT™)
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose abjective is to hold assets for both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized
in the other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL™)

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date a0 fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in Equity Instruments

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as a1 FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income 1o profit or loss,

Investment in Debt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FYTOCI Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as a1 FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised whzn the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

6.3

6.4

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
pavables, net of directly anributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurcment

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial linbilities designated upon init'al recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is includ=d as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uses derivative financial instraments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instiuments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured al fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when tle fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Inventories

Finished products including traded goods are valued at lower of cost (on moving weighted average
basis) and net realisable value. The cost of Inventories have been computed to include all cost of
purchases, cost of conversion, appropricte share of fixed production overheads based on normal
capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Slow and non-moving, obsolesces, defective inventory are fully provided for and valued at net
realisable value, Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of
balance sheet.

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposithighly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2020

6.5

6.6

6.7

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose
of statement of cash Mow,

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flow from operating. investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated,

Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monelary loreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

T'he Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers.
In accordance with Ind-AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the Company recognises
revenue by applying the following five steps:

« Step 11 Identify the contraci(s) with 2 customer

The Company applies the revenue recognition model fo each contract with a customer once it is
probable the entity will collect the consideration 1o which it will be entitled. Comtracts for this
purpose may be writlen, verbal or implied by customary business practices, but must be
enforceable and have commercial substance. In evaluating whether collection is probable, the
Company considers only the customer's ability and intention to pay the consideration when due.

*  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Once the contract has been identified. the Company evaluates the terms and customary business
practices to identify which promised goods or services should be sccounted for as separate
performance obligations. The key determinant for identifying a separaie performance obligation
is whether a good or service, or a bundle, is distinct. A good or service is distinct if the customer
can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other readily available
resources and the good or service is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract.
The Company treats each distinet good or service as a separate performance abligation

«  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects 1o be entitled and
includes:
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-An estimate of any variable consideration determined using either a probability-weighted
expected value or the most likely amount, whichever better predicts the amount of consideration
to which the Company will be entitled

-The effect of the time value of money, if there is a financing component that is significant 1o
the contract

-The fair value of any non-cash consideration
= Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

The Company usually allocates transaction price 1o each separate performance obligation on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. When determining stand-alone selling prices, the
Company uses observable information, if it is available. If stand-alone selling prices are not
directly observable, the Company estimates such prices based on reasonably available
information, e.g. adjusted market assessment approach or an expected cost plus a margin
approach. Only when the stand-alone selling price of a good or service is highly variable or
uncertain, the Company use residual approach for allocation.

= Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The Company determines whether it satisfies performance obligation by transferring control of a
promised good or service over time or al a point in time 1o the customer. A performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which
case, it is satisfied over time:

-The customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs

-The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced

The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use 1o the Company
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised, when all significant risks and rewards are transferred
to the buyer, as per the terms of contracts and no significant uncertainty exists regarding amount
of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buver, usually on delivery of goods, it is probable that the economic benefit
will flow to the Company, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated
reliably, there is neither continuing management involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. The Company is principal in all of its revenue arrangements, since it is the primary obligor
in all of the revenue arrangements, as it has pricing latitude and is exposed to inventory and credit
risks.

Provisions for chargeback, rebates and discounts are estimated and provided for in the vear of sales
and recorded as reduction of revenue.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amount disclosed
as revenue are inclusive of excise duty, eacluding Goods and Services tax (GST), sales tax or value
added taxes or service taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government, and net of amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.
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When the financing element is significant, the Company adjusts the iransaction price for the time
value of money. The objective when adjusting the consideration for a significant financing
componenl is 10 recognise revenue at the cash selling price.

Revenue from sale of technology / know how (rights, licences and other intangibles) are recognised
when performance obligation is completed as per the terms of the agreement. Incomes from services
are recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis, Insurance and other claims are recognised as
a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes
are accounted to the extent considered receivable.

Dividend income is recognised when the Entity’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes & liability net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given
by the Company to its employees include salaries and wages and other non-monetary benefits,

Post-Employment Benefits — Mo provision has been made in respect of employee retirement
benefits as emplovees are not eligible for such benefits. Besides the company does not have any
pension scheme or any contracted agreement binding itsell to the employees,

Share-based compensation
Company has no share based compensation plan,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs comprise of other bank charges. Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an assei that takes substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the assel. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they occur,

Lease

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to zontrol the use of an identified asset for a
period of lime in exchange for consideration. To asses; whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesies whether: (1) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Compeny has the right to direct the use of the
asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU")
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements 1n which it is a lessee, except for leases
with @ term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease pasments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.
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The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made af or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable, For the jurpose of impairment testing the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost 10 sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) 1o
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discoumed using the generally accepted interest rate, |.ease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option,

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as finand ing cash flows.

Leases for which the Company is a lesscr is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease wransfer substaptially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. A'l other Jeases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental incomg is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all
lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment 1o retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the
generally accepted interest rate and the right of 1se asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue 1o be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of bur Annua Report for year ended March 31, 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of Use' asset of
212.95 Lacs and a lease liability of 213.91 Lacs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard,
amounting to 20.96 Lacs was debited to retained =arnings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption is
insignificant on the profit before 1ax, profit for tie period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will
result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from
financing activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate 10 a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not 1o recognize nght-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application
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¢. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17,

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17
disclosed under Note 21 of the 2019 Annua! Report and the value of the lease liability as of April 1,
2019 is primarily on account of inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain to
be exercised, in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the
lease liabilities to the present value under Ind AS 116,

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at April |, 2019 is 9%.

Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit anributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, The dilutive potential
equily shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been aciually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each

period presented.
Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

Income fax expense is recognized in net profi in the statement of profit and loss except o the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the vear
calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences anising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements,
However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period and
are expected to apply in the period when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred 1ax assets are recognised to the extent that il is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Dividends to Sharcholders
Annual dividend distribution 1o the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which

the dividends are approved by the sharcholders, Any inmterim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

General

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognized when: (a) the Company has a presem obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and those risks specific 1o
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as expense finance cost. When some or all of the expenditure required to sentle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized
when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles
the obligation, The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognized for
the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted 1o reflect the current best estimate,

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

» A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation;

* A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible,

& A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in th: Financial Statements. Contingent assets
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Stateraents.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties lor
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease,

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

Assel Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the leas period 1o restore the leased premises in a
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs 10
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a currer! pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specilic
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the 'discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added 1o or deducted from the cost of the asset, 4

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value al each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS 113.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the hidtorical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

s Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank.

o Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).

« Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.
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Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or seitle a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a lizbility is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 10 another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy. deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

+ Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the Jevel of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Recent accounting pronouncements
Standards issued but not yvet effective
Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
cstimates and assumptions that affect the rcported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjusiment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods,

(a)  Arrangement containing lease
Al the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease, At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease,
Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases.
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(d)

(e)

n

Multiple element contracts with vendors

The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent of the
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly. the supplies and services are
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property. Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the
Company has economic ownership in these assels, Companyv believes that the currenl
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement,

Property, Plant and equipment

Determination of the estimated useful life of rangible assets and the assessmem as 10 which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life
of useful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also
neéed 10 be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

Intangible Assets
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets.
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable,

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Kev actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and wvested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference 10 market yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period 1o maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the posi-
employment benefit obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences 10 the exten
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised, The management assumes that taxable profits will be
available while recognising deferred tux assets.

Management judgment is required for the caleulation of provision for income tases and
deferred 1ax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead 1o significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
stalements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of imternational business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country,
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required 1o determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments,

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

Contingencies

Management judgement s required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment s made on the
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
life of the financial assets,

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumption and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery,

Impairment reviews

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (*CGL")
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use caleulation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumplions are required to be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management’s expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved,
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25.

26.

Capital Management

Company’s policy is 1o maintain a strong capital base so as 1o mamntain investor, creditor and marker
confidence and to sustun future development of the business. Management monitors the retum on
capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity sharcholders. The board of dircctors seeks (o maintain
a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advantages and sccurity afforded by a sound capital position. Company ‘s target is to achieve a retumn on
capital above 30%, in 2019-20 the return was -168% and in 2018-19 the retum was -38%,

Company monitors capital using a ratio of "adjusted net debt' to ‘adjusted equity’ For this purpose,
adjusted nct debt 1s defined as total habilities, compnsing interest-beanng loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents and short term investments. Adjusted
equily compnses all components of equity.

Company’s policy 15 to keep the ratio below 1 00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March

2020 was as follows, 3 in Lacs

Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Debt (Debt + Current Liabilitics) IR76 33352
Less: Cash and Cash cquivalents 6.29 88.31
Met Debt A 3247 245.02
Equitv B 5249 11493
Net Debt to Equity ratio A/B 0.62 2.13

Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Earmings per Share

Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Profit attributable to Equity sharcholders- for Basic EPS (2| A (62.12) (31 63)
in Lacs)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (¥ in Lacs) B Nil Nil
Profit attnbutable to Equity sharcholders for computing | C=A-B (62.12) (31.65)
Diluted EPS (2 in Lacs)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding - D 6.00,00.000 6.00,00,000
for Basic EPS

Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number of E Nil Nil
Equity Shares

Weighted Average Number of Equity Sharcs for Diluted | F=D+E 5, 00,00,000 6,00,00,000
EPS

Face Value per Equity Share (NN) 1 |
Basic Earninps Per Share (3) A/D {0,100 (0.05)
Diluted Earnings Per Shares (2) CIF (0.10) (0.05)

Employee Benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 *Emplovee Benefits”, the Company offers its employees: Shori-term employee
benefits - These benefits include salanies and wages and other allowances which are pard immediately
The total consideration pard in 2019-20 was T4 81 Lacs (Previous Year X 2.95 Lacs),

Retirement plan - No provision has been made in respect of employee retirement benefits as employecs
are not ehgible for such benefits. Besides the company does not have any pension scheme or amy
contracted agreement binding itself 1o the emplovees
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27.

Fair value measurements

Tin Lacs

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Financial Instruments by category FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - - - 350,00
Cash and cash cquivalents - .29 - B8 3]
Total Financial Assets - 6.29 - 438.31
Financial Liabilities
Other Current Liabilitics - 19.71 - 142.77
Trade Pavables - 19.04 - 190 55
Total Financial Liabilities - 38,75 - REL N
Fair Value Hierarchy Zin Lacs

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Financial assels and liabilities measured at Level Level
fair value

1 11 I | 11 11
Financial assets
Non recurring fair value measurement
Trade Receivables - - - - - 350,00
Cash and cash equivalents - - 6.29 - - 8831
Total Financial Assets - - 6.29 = 438.31
Financial Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities - - 19.71 - - 14277
Trade Pavables - - 19.04 - - 191) 55
Total Financial Liabilities - - 38.75 - - 33332

Level | — The hierarchy in level | includes financial instruments measured using quoted pnces This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (Like forward
contracts) is determined usmg valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and relv as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value as
instrument arc observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
15 included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity secuntics, etc. included in level 3

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following nisks ansing from financial instruments:
» Credit nsk
* Liquidity nisk
» Market nsk

Risk management framework

Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company ‘s nsk management framework. Management 1s responsible for developing and menitoning the
Company’s nsk management policies. under the guidance of Audit Commitice.
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Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analvse the risks faced by 11, 1o set
appropriate risk limits and controls and 1o monitor nisks and adherence 1o limits. Risk management
pohicies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Company, through its truning and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Company’s Audit commitice oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the nsk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Company, The audit committee 1s assisted m 1ts oversight role by
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoe reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit commutice.

¥
L1

Credit risk

Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise manly from transactions with 11s
approved customers. The maximum exposure 10 credit on these transactions is equal to the carmving
amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject to stnngent financial, credit and legal
venfication process. In addition, trade recevable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis 1o
ensure imely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure o bad debts 1s not sigmficant

With respect to credit risk ansing from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash
in banks and recervables (except for advances to suppliers), the Company's exposure to credit risk
anses from defanlt of the counterparty . with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these mstruments. The Company limits 1ts exposure to credit nsks by depositing its cash only with
financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Dircctors, The Company's
receivables 1s minimal since no default pavments were made by the counterparties, An impainuent
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incurnng unacceptable losses. The Company s objective 15 to, at all
tmes maintain opamum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its hgqudity posihon and deploys a robust cash management system
Presently the Company has existing long-term loans that fund capital expenditures. Working capital
requirements are adequately addressed by intemally generated funds Trade receivables ane kept
within manageable levels

Market risk

Market nisk is the nisk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management 15 to manage and control market nisk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retumn. Financial instruments affected
by market nsk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and denvative financial
instruments. Company's activities expose it 1o a vanety of financial nsks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. All transactions are carmied out within
the guidclines set by the risk management commitice.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of denvatives and the proportion of financial
instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis ¢xcludes the impact of movements
in market vanables on the carrying value of postemployment bencfit abligations, provisions and on
the non-financial assets and habilities, The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item 15 the
effect of the assumed changes in the respective market nsks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilites held as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,
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a) Currency risk
The Company s foreign exchange nsk results pnmarily from movements of the Nigeran Niara
against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities. The
Company s transactional currency exposures arise from its inventonies which is purchases from
Holding Company in US dollar. The Company regularly reviews the trend of the foreign

cxchange rates,
The following table analyses foreign currency nsk as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019
2in Lacs
Particulars 3 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade Pavables (19.04) {190.53)
Net Assets [ (Liabilines) (19.04) (190.55)

For the vear ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate between the Nigenan Naim and respective curmrencies has

affected the Company's incremental profit before tax as per below %in Lacs
Year Change in currency exchange rate Effect on profit before tax
31 March 2020 +25% / (-25%) (4.76) /1 4.76
31 March 2019 +25% / (-25%) 32.37/(32.57)

Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

Dunng the vear, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
currency exposures that have not been mitigaied by a denvative instrument or otherwise are as below

§ Foreign Currency i
Particulars tin Lacs Aiat in Lics cFurﬂgn
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 | ~"""%Y
Amount 19.04 190.55 025 276 UsSD
Pavable

b} Interest rate risk
The Company have no borrowings and hence there is no interest rate nsk,

¢} Price risk
Company does not have anv exposure to price risk. as there is no equity investments.

Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - “Leases™:

The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease is for a period of 12 to 24 months
and are renewable upon mutual consent of the partics. There are no contingent rents. The lease payments
of TNil (Previous Year 2 3.00 Lacs) are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under “Rent™ under
Note 23

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease
contracts existing on Apnl 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and bas taken the cumulative
adjustment to retained camings. on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded
the lease hability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the generally accepted interest
rate and the right of use asset at its carrving amount as if the standard had been applicd since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generlly accepted interest rate at the date of
initial application. Comparatives as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2019 have not been
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retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included
as pant of our Annual Repont for yvear ended March 31, 2019

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use” asset of 212 95
Lacs and a lease hability of ¥13.91 Lacs. The cumulative cffect of applying the standard, amounting 10
20.96 Lacs was debited to retained camings, net of taxes, The effect of this adoption 1s insignificant on
the profit before tax, profit for the peniod and camings per share, Ind AS 116 will result in an increase
in cash inflows from operating activitics and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on
account of lease pavmenis.

The following 15 the summary of practical expedients elected on inibal apphcation

a  Applied a single discount rate to a penfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize nght-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
mionths of lease term on the date of initia! apphication.

¢ Excluded the initial dircct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of iniial
application.

d. Applied the practical expedient to grardfather the assessment of which transactions are leases
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 15 applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under
Ind AS 17

The difference between the lease obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 disclosed
under Note 21 of the 2019 Annual Report wnd the value of the lease hability as of Apnl 1, 2019 18
prmanily on account of inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain to be
exercised, in measuring the lease hability ir accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the leasc
liabilinies to the present value under Ind AS 116

The imtercst rate applied to lease liabilities as al Apnl 1, 2019 15 9%,

Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

There are no contingent liabilities and commutracnts by the Company,

Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relationships: .
Category 1 — Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary

Ajanta Pharma Ltd , India {Holding Company)
B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: Tin Lacs
Sr. No. | Particulars Category 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

B Purchase of Goods:

% Purchase Return:

Ajanta Pharma Lid , India 1 38270
C) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 2020 2in Lacs
Sr. No. | Particulars Category 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

1. Trade Payable ;

Ajanta Pharma Lid., India | 140.29 171.44

Ajanta Pharma Ltd . India I 19.04 190,53
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32.  The Company has one segment of activity namely “Pharmaceuticals”
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